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Friday, '3 January, 1947

INTERNATIONAL MILITARY TRIBUNAL
FOR THE FAR EAST
Court House of the Tribunal
War Ministry Building
Tokyo, Japan

The Tribunal met, pursuant to adjournment,

at 0930.

Appearances:
For the Tribunal, same as before with

the exception of: HONORABLE JUSTICE D. JARANILIA,
Member from the Republic of the Philippines,
HGNORABLE JUSTICE JU-AO MEI, Member from the
Republic of China and HONORABLE JUSTICE BERNARD
VICTOR A. ROLING; Member from the Kingdom of the

Netherlands, not sitting,.
LORD PATRICK, Member from the United

Kingdem of Great Britain, now sitting.

For the Prosecution Section, same as before,

For the Defense Section, same as before.,

!

|

J
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The Accused:
All present except OKAWA, Shumei and
NAGANC, Osami, who are represented by their

respective counsel.

(English to Japanese and Japanese
to English interpretation was made by the

Language Section, IMTFE.)
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MARSHAL OF THE ©OURT: The International
Military Tribunal for %the Far East is now in sessien,

THE PRESIDENT: All the accused are present
except OKAWA and NAGANO, who are represented by their
respective counsel, We have a certificate from the
prisen surgeon of Sugamo stating that NAGANO is 111 and
unable to attend the trial today. The certificate
will be recorded and filed.

COiMMANDER COLE: If it please the Tribunal,
it is now proposed to present evidence relating to the
treatrent of prisoners of war and civilian internees by
the Japanese in China.

I offer in evidence prosecution document
No. 8392, which is a synopsis of evidence,

THE PRESILENT: Admitted on the usual terms.

CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's document
No. 8392 will receive exhibit No. 18837.

(Whereupon, the document above
referred to was marked nrosecution's exhibit

No. 1887, and was received in evidence,)

COMMANDER COLE: Prosecution document No. 8178,

the affidavit of Ernest P. Higgs, sworn to 4 March 1946,

is offered for identification,

CLERK OF TEE COURT: Prosecution's document

|
|
|
|

No. 8178 will receive exhibit No. 1883 for identificationi
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(Whereupon, the decument above
referred to was marked prosecution's exhibit

No. 1888 for identification.)
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COMMANLER CCLE: The marked excerpts therefrom;
are rnow offered in evidence.

THE PRESITCENT: Admitted on the usual terms,

CLERK OF THE COURT: And the marked excernt

therefrom will be given exhibit No, 1888-A.
("Whereupon, the document above
referred to was marked prosecution's exhibit
No. 1888-A, and was received in evidence.)
COMNANLER COLE: This affidavit relates to
the killing of a civilian internee by the Japanese
military police in Shanghail in August, 1943.
Inspector ¥William Hutton was t aken from |
Haiphong Road Camp to the headquarters of the Japanese
€endarmerie for questioning and was returned te the
camp in an unconscious condition. The marks on ﬁis
body showed that he haa been tortured by innumerable
small cuts with a razor blade. He died several days f
later, |
The affidavit states, on page 1:
"With reference to Insnmector William Hutton. |
I saw a man named Yatson arrestec by one of the guardsj
and taken to the camp office for questioning., I foundi
out later that he was accused of trying to get a messaée

l
out of the camp. The Japanese authorities looked for |

a man who was stated to have been sitting next to

l
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Watson at the time. A guard identified a certain man
as being the one. Actually however this was not so,
and the next morning Inspector Hutton went to the
authorities and told them that they haa made a mistake,
and that he was the man who had been sitting next to
Watson. Both men were taken out of the camp, I under-
stand to Jessfield Road, headquarters of the Japanese
Gendarmerie, ‘hen they were brought back again several
days later the man Watson could walk with assistance,
and after a week or so in the camp hospital seemed to
be quite fit., The man Hutton however was lying in the
bottom of the car, naked excent for a small pair of
pants about his middle. He was unconscious and was
placed on a stretcher and taken to the doctor in the
clinic., A few minutes later I saw him on the stretcher
being carried into the camp hospital. There were marks
on his wrigts which suggested that he had been strapned
cown and that both his legs from ankles to hins were
criss~crossed with small cuts which haé the appearance
of having been done with an instrument such as a sharp
razor blade. I did not see the remainder of his body,
although the man sleeping next to me in the camp told
me that he had seen Hutton's chest and that this also
was similarly disfigured with cuts, It was comrmon

knowledge amongst the internees at the camp that other
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injuries had been sustained by Hutton during the time
that he was out of the camp including damage to his

kidneys anc private parts, and that the torture that

he had undergone had snapped his brain. After three

‘or four days in the camp hospital he was placed in an

doctor, but he died that night."

Prosecution document No. 8180, the affidavit
of Ernest Solomon, sworn to 18 May 1946, is offered
for identification, and marked excerpts from this docu-
ment are offered im evidence.

THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms.

CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's document
No. 8180 will receive exhibit No. 1889 for identifica-
tion only. The marked excerpt therefrom will receive
exhibit No. 188G-A.

(Whereupsn, vrosecution's document
No. 8180 was marked prosecution's exhibit

No., 1889 for identification; and the excerpt

' therefrom, bearing the same document number,

was marked prosecution's exhibit No. 1889-4
and received in evidence.)
COMMANDER COLE: This affidavit confirms

the killing of Inspector Hutton described in the

previous document No, 8178,

e

ambulance and sent to a mental hospital run by a Russian
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Prosecution document No. 8137, the afficavit
of Private James H. Cole, swsrn to 6 October 1945,
is offered for identification, and marked excerpts
from this document are offered in evidence.

THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms.

CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's document
No. 8137 will receive exhibit No. 1890 for identifi-
cation only, and the marked excerpt therefrom will
receive exhibit No. 1890-A.

(Whereupon, nrosecution's document
No., 8137 was marked prosecution's exhibit
No. 1890 for identification; anc the excerpt
therefrom, bearing the same document number,
was marked prosccution's exhibit No. 1890-A
and recaived in evicence.)

CO¥MANLER COLE: The affidavit describes the
shooting of an American .edivilian by a Javanese guard
at Shanghai Prisoner of war Camp in March 1942, The
civilian was standing nsar the prison fence when the
guard, without prowvacation, shot and killed him,

Leponent was forced to wnrk volishing anti-
aircraft shell cases. If the prisoners did not
comnlete sixteen cases per day thay were beaten with
clubs and rifle butts. For minor offences such as

failure to salute or failure to bow upon meeting a
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Japanese, the »risoners were stripped of 211 clothing
and forecc to stand at attention for three to four
hours curing winter months when the temnerature was
bzlow freezing. Several men develoned pncumonia due
to this punishment.

Prosecution document No. 2662, part 12,
being the report of the Central Investigation Com-
mittee relating to prisoners of war, dated 4 November
1945, is bffered in evidancsa,

THE PRESIDERT: Acdmitted on the usuzl terms,

CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's document
No. 2662, part 12, will receive exhibit No. 1891.

(Whereuvon, the document above
referred to was marked »rosecution's exhibit
No. 1891, and was roceived in evidence.)

COMMANLER COLE: Prosecution document
No. 2662, signed by Licutcnant Colonel Richard E,.
Rudisill, Chief, Investigation Livision, Legal Section,
SCAP, being the certifieate of source and authen-
ticity covering this investigation rceport as well as
othar similar rcvorts to be introduczd in evidence

ater, 1s offered in ecvidcmees

THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms,
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(Whersupon, the documcnt above

referred to was marksd prosescutiont!s axhibit

(6]

No. 1892, and was recsived in evidence.)

COLI'ANDER COLE: Prosccution Gocument
No. 2662, part 12, dascribes the killing of throe
American airmen in Hankow, China, in Lecember 1944,
Preliminary roports indicate. that the three captured
airmen with their hands tied bshind their backs were
marched through the streets of Hankow, severcly
begten, and then covered with gasoline and burned to
decath., This cocument inclndes (pags 6) a2 roport by
Major Genar>l KABURAGI, Chicf of Staff of the Japancse
34th Army at the timec of the incident, which disclaims
knowledge of tho details of the atrocity, but admits
that permission to march the fliers through the city
was grant:d by the éommanding genoral of the 34th Army.
The raport states on pagz 6:

"4 November 1945. Major General KABURAGI.

"I. Cireenstencea of the Incident.

"l. Since around antumn of last year, the
indiseriminate shooting and bombing of the city of
Hankow eaused considcerable damage to the homes of the
citizors. Not only that, but th: casunltics inflicted
upon the psoplz, chicfly uvon the Chinesc forees, was

great, and the indignation of the citizens gradually
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"2, Thc Hankow Youth Organization (?) forced

tho Amorican fliers who participatzd in attacks =2gainst
Henkow,, to march through tho city, as = reprisal for
the above-mentionzd indiscriminatc bombing and shoot-
ing. Thc citizzsns carried out beatings and violence
against these fliers.

"I do not havz a detziled knowledge of the
methods, means, 2nd degree of the atrocity.

"3, Before the above-mentioned incident
was carried out, 2pplication for permission to do so
was made to the 34th Armv Headquarters by the Hankow
Vouth Orgonization (?). However, the Comm~nder of
the Army (Lieutenant General SANO) would not give
permission at first; beecause the ill-trentment of
prisoners of war is not only a wiolation of Internatienal
Liw, but would also have n bad influence upon the
treatment of Japsnese nationals interned in the United
States. However, the Youth Organlzation repeatedly
requested the permission for carrying it out, saying
that the plan was 2 reprisal for the indiscriminate
shooting ocnd bombings and that it would be carrled out
under the responsibility of the Chinese people and th=t
they will absolutely refrsin from troubling the Japanese

Forges, Comsequently, the permission for the afore-

mentioned wns gronted."
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Prosecution document No., 8172, the affi-
dzvit of Captain Edward E. Willismson, sworn to 6
June 1946, is offered for idertificetion and marked
excerpts trerefrom are now offered in evidence.

TFE PRESIDFNT: Admitted on tre usual
terms,

CLERK OI' TFE COURT: Prosecution's docu-
ment No. 8172 will receive exribit No. 1893 for
identificetion only, and the excerpts trerefrom
will receive exhibit No. 1893-A.

(Wrereupon, the docurert atrove
referrec to wes marked rrosecution's ex-
hibit No. 1893 for identification, and
tre excerpts trerefrom were marked prose-
cution's exhibit No. 1893-A and received
in evidence.)

COMMANDYR COLE: Prosecution document No.
8175. tre affidavit of ™illiam S. Bungey, sworn to
21 Februsry 1945, is offered for identificstion, and
marled excerpts from this document are offered in
evidence,

THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual
terms.

CLERK OF TFE COURT: Prosecution's docu-

ment No. 8175 will receive exkibit No. 1894 for
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identification only, and the excerpts tlerefrom will
receive exribit No. 1894-A,
(Whereupon, the document above
referred to was msrked prosecution's ex-
hibit No. 1894 for identification, and
the excerpts therefrom were marked rrose-
cution's exhibit No. 1894-A and received
in evidence.)

CLERK CF THE COURT: The previous document,
prosecution, given exhibit No. 1893, wes document
No. 8172,

COMMANDER COLE: These affidavits describe
trke methods of torture used during interrogstion of
civilian internees by the Japanese Gendermarie at
Bridge Fouse in Shanghai.

Document No. 8172 states, on page 2:

"At veriove detes folloving the occupation
of the Settlements in Shanghai the Japanese Gendarm-
erie, acting on informetion and from years of in-
quiries, proceeded to arrest prominent Allied nation-
als, that is, heads of buginess firms and leading
members of national societies. These pers:ons were
tren taken to an apartment house known as 'Bridge
Fouse,' which had beern the readquarters of the

Japanese Gendermarie since 1937, the dete of the
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outbreak of the Sino-Japanese hostilities. Wren
trese Allied nationals were taken to Bridge Fouse
trev were thrown into a filthy verminous cell which
was alreadv overcrowded with persons of various
nationality, both male and female, numbering between
fifteen and twenty persons. For tre toilet a bucket
in the corner of tre cell was the only facility pro-
vided, serving both male and female occupants. The
food provided was mainly rice in porridge form with
weak tea in quantities not sufficient to sustain
life. Sleep was impossible in trese cells, as all
could not lie down at onece. Trey, the prisoners,
were only supplied with one blanket which was also
verminous.

"On tre days previous to interrorztions
trese prisoners were placed in a cell usually next
door to a torture clember, whére trey could hear the
vells and cries of persons being beaten and tortured,
hearing moans as if the person beaten were actually
dying. This treatment of arrested civilisns, that
is, locked in a filtky cell, little or no food,
mede to listen to the tortures and beating of other
prisoners such as, Crhinese, Indian and Russians, was
an organized, premeditated and inhumen way of break-

ing down the resistance and morale of trese prisoners,
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so as to put them in mental and bodily fear of
torture wren their turn for 'interrogation' came.
"TORTURE
"Various tortureslwere administered during

interrogation, tre main ones being 'Water Torture,'

whick is done by laying a person flat on a bench

with his bead overbanging one end. A funnel is thren

placed in tre mouth and water forced into the abdomen
and lungs. The torturer then jumps on the stomach of
his victim, producing a drowning sensation.

Electric Treetment. This is done by tying tre

victim to a 'painters' ladder!
in the shape of a crucifix, and applying a hand
menipulated shocking zoil to tre body. The perts
chosen usually were around tre privete members or
near the nose. Before this trestment is given the
body 18 sprayed with eold water.

Beatings. These came into various categories, such
as: (1) Beating across tre back and
buttocks with a stock or hose. (2) Slap-

ping of the face. (3) Kicking of the shins and

various other sadistic methods such as kicking the
private parts.

Other. In one case they removed both toe nails

from the big toes of a victim without an
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anaesthetic. The rack torture was also administered
and many others too numerous to mention."

At all civil internment camps food and liv-
ing conditions were bed and beatings were frequent.
Many of the camps were located in military areas and
the internees were exposed to air raids.

Prosecution document No, 8127, the testi-
mony of Private James S. Browning, sworn to 4 January
1946, is offered for identificstion, and merked ex-
cerpts from this document zre offered in evidence,

THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on fhe usual
terms.

Commander Cole, why didn't you give us copies
of exhibit 18927 It is a certificate covering an
index. I kave it, thank you, but tre otler Judges
haven't., Please distribute it.

CLERK COF THE COURT: Prosecution's docu-
ment No. 8127 will receive exhibit No., 1895 for iden-
tifieption only, and the excerpts trerefrom will re-~
ceive exbibit No. 1895-A.

(Mrereupon, tre document above
referred to was marked prosecution's ex-
hibit No. 1895 for identification, and the
excerpts trerefrom were marked prosecu-

tion's exhibit No. 1895-A and received in

'
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evidence.)

CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's docu-
ment to which the Bench has just referred, to wit:
No. 2662, was given exhibit No, 1892,

COMMANDER COLE: Deronent describes the
torture of approximately fifty American prisoners of
war at the Shanghai prisoner of war camp in Feb-
ruary 1944, The prisoners were punisted for trading
their personel effects to the Chinese to obtain
money. They were stripped, taken out in the snow
and given the water cure by heving water forced into
their stomechs anc then were jumped on by thre
Japanese. "hen the prisoners became unconscious theyf
were revived by tying them to a post in the snow and
pouring ice water over them. They were also besten
with a riding crop loaded with lead.

Prosecution document No. 8033, tke deposi-
tion of Sergeant Robert McCulloch Brown, sworn to
15 February 1946, is offered for identification, and
marked excerpts from:this document are offered in
evidence.

THFE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual
terms,

CLERK OF TEE EOURIT: Prosecution's docu-

ment No. 8033 will receive exhibit No. 1896 for




10

11

12

13

14

4,371

identification only, and the excerpts therefrom
will receive exhibit No. 1896-A.

(Mereupon, the document above
referred to was marked prosecution's
exribit No. 1896 for identificstion, and
the excerpts trerefrom were masrked prose-
cution's exhibit No. 1896-A and received
in evidence.)

COMMANDER COLE: This deposition confirms
the previous document and states that prisoners of
war at Shanghal camp were given the water torture
for trading with tre Crinese. This affidsvit states,
on pafe 2

". . . Tre men were first severely beaten
by ISHIHARA and MYAZAKI. Some of these bestings
consisted of being struck with a riding crop freouent-
ly used by ISHIHARA to infliet discipline upon the
prisoners. After they had been mauled in this manner,
each prisoner was held on the floor and was forced
to open his moutkr. Then, with a Japanese rolding
the prisoner's nose, water was poured into the
prisoner's open meutk until he became unconscious.
The Japanese then slapped the prisoner's face and
threw cold water on his body in order to revive him,

Tris incident took place in January 1944 and the
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weather was ver— cold. It is tkherefore apparent that

the use of cold water on prisoners under suchk cir-

fl cumstances imposed a severe shock upon treir systems,
Zl These five men were subjected to this treatment for

- twelve days, until the Japzsnese finally decided that
o | @additional mistreatment woulé cezuse their deaths.

. Tre men were then hospitalized and lster returned

g| to duty."

Prosecution document No. 8007-4, tre testi-
10| mony of John F. Ryan, sworn to 15 February 1946, is
11 offered for identification and marked excerpts

12 trerefrom are offered in evidence.

13 THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on tke usual

14 terms.

15 CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's docu-

16| ment No. 8007-A will receive exribit No. 1897 for

2 identification only, and the excerpts therefrom will
18|  preceive exhibit No. 1897-A.

o (™hereupon, the document above

20 :
referred to was merked prosecution's

A exhibit No. 1807 for identificeation, and
= the excerpts therefrom were marked prose-
£ cution's exkibit No. 1897-A and received
3 in evidence.)

25

COMMANDER COLE: The deponent states that
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he was one of about one hundred prisoners at Woosung
camp in September 1942 who suffered mess punishment
for tre ecscare of four Marines. Tre prisoners were
confined for six davs in a single room without heat
or bed clofbing, at a time when the temperature was
very cold and with inadequate rations. Tke command-
ing officer of the camp was responsible for this
punishment.

Prosecution document No, 8130, the affi-
davit of Private Carl E. Stegmaier, sworn to 8
October 1945, is offered for identification and
marked excerpts trerefrom are now offered in evidence.

THE FPRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual
terms.

CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's docu-
ment No. 8130 will receive extibit No. 1898 for
identification only, and the excerpts therefrom will
receive exhibit No. 1898-A.

(Mhereupon, the document above
referred to was merked prosccution's
exhibit No. 1898 for identification, and
the excerpts trherefrom were merked prose-
cution's exhibit No., 1898-A and received

in evidence.)

COMMANDER COLE: Deponcnt wes one of five
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prisoners of war at Kiang ™an camp in January 1945,
who were bayoneted by a Japanese gusrd during an
air raid by U.S. planes. The only provocation was
that some of the prisoners had cheered during the
air raid.

Prosecution document No, 8072-&, the affi-
devit of Corporal Morris Littman, sworn to 15
October 1945, is offered for identification and
marked excerpts from this document are offecred in
evidence.

THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the ususl
terms.

CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's docu-
ment No. §072-A will receive exhibit No. 1899 for
identification only, and the excerpts trerefrom
will receive exhibit No. 1899-4,

(™hereupon, the document above
referred to was marked prosecutionfs
exhibit No. 1899 for identificetion, and
the excerpts therefrom were marked prose-
cution's exhibit No., 1899-A and received
in evidence,)
COMMANDER COLE: Deponent stetes thst three

American prisoners who were recaptured zfter escaping

from the Mukden camp in April 1943, were brutally
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"Along about the middle of April 1943
three of the Americans at Camp Mukden escaped from
the camp and were not missed by the Japanese guards
until roll call the following morning. ZEach of the
three men were from separate barracks. I don't recall
their names., The three men were absent from camp for
about three days before they were caught by the Japan-
ese and returned to camp. I saw the men when they
were returned to the camp. They were walking one be-
hind the other with a guard along the side of them
holding them up; I don't think they were able to walk
by themselves; one of them had a rag wrapped around
his head which was blood soakeds; all three of them
had their clothing on their backs ripped up and was
very bloody; their ankles were chained together and
could only take small stepsj the chain extended up
their back and their hands were chained together,

We went on to work in the factory that day and later
on in the day the guards brought them out to camp

and tried to make them pick out the Americans who

had helped them to escape, alss the Japanese who had
aided in the escape. They refused to give any infor-
mation and were removed from camp. Two days later
the Japanese officiagls had the wood shop teo make

three erosses with their names on the cross."
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"The Japanese guards took a c¢etail of three or more men

to the cemetery where there were three freshly coverecd
graves and the detail set up the crosses over these
three graves which they had prepared in the wood shop
of the camp. The Japanese guards in the camp said
that they were becheaded with samural swords. The day
following the date on which the three men were caught
the Japanesc didn't let us go to work; they casme in
and called attention and showed us a position that
they wanted us to sit in and placed a guard over us

to see that we stayed in that position and kept us
this way for two weeks in the daytime. They made us
sit at attention with our legs crossed above the knee,
our hands resting on our leg with palm up. We sat on
the edge of our beds. We were not allowed to speak
and could move our hands only when we ate. Each of
the three men that had escaped were from each of three
barracks so the Japanese made the barracks, three in

number, all sit like this for two weeks."
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Prosecution document No. 8209, the testimony
of Captain Winfield S, Cunningham, USN, sworn to 26
November 1945, is offered for identification, and
the marked excerpts from this document are offered
in evidence.
THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms.
CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's document
No, 8209 will receive exhibit No. 1900 for identifi-
cation only, and the marked excerpt therefrom will
receive exhibit No. 1900A.
(Whereupon, the document above re-
ferred to was marked ~rosecutionfs exhibit
No. 1900 for identification; and the ex-~
cerpt therefrom was marked prosecution's
exhibit No. 1900A and received in evidence.)
COMMANDER COLE: Deponent escaped from
Woosung Camp in March, 1942, and after being recap-
tured and confined 1in Bridge House for a month was
tried by court martial under the provisicns of
Japanese military law as a deserter from the Janan-
ese Army. Deponent pointed out that under irter-
national law the maximum punishment for escape that
could be imposed was thirty days solitarv confinement.
The Japarnese court contended thet they were not bound

by the Geneva Convention and sentenced deponent to
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ten years confinement. Deponent escaped from Ward
Road Jail in October, 1944 and, after being re-
captured, was sentenced to life imprisonment.

Deponent states at page 9 that from the
evidence it appears that the prisoners of war were
deliberately underfed to keep them in a low physical
state.

Prosecutien document No. 8279, the sworn
affidavit of Commander C. D. Smith, dated 26 Feb-
ruary 1945, is offered for identification, and
marked excerpts therefrom are offered in evidence.

THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms.

CLERK OF THE COULT: Prosecution document
No. 8279 will receive exhibit No. 1901 for identifi-
cation only, and the marked excerpt therefrom will
receive exhibit No. 1901A.

(Whereupon, the decument above re-
ferred to was marked prosecution's exhibit
No. 1901 for identification; and the ex-
cerpt therefrom was mnrked vprosecution's
exhibit Ne, 1901A and received in evidence.)

COMMANDEE COLE: Deponent escaped from
Woosung prisoner of war camp and was recaptured.
After thirty days at Bridge House he was tzken to

Kiang Wan Camp and, after fifty-three days in
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solitary confinement, was given a general court
martial on a charge of "desertion from the Japarese
Army in tire of war." The trial resulted in a sen-
tence of ten years imprisonment to be served in a
criminal jail with loss of all military rights.
Deponent states on page 4:

"At Bridge House I wes confined in a cell
with 18 others -- Chinese, Jspanese, and foreigners.
The conditions in this place were avnalling. I was
lving rext to 2 man with leprosy and wes forced to
sleep in close contzct with him as the place wes
so crowded. We were kept here for 30 deys under-
going what the Jepesnese called an investiretion.

The food consisted of congee in the mornirg end
four ounces of breed s day. One small cup of tes
wes given us twice a day,rno other liouids being
procuresble.

"The morezl degredetion here wes of con-
siderably more importance then the actuasl nhysicel

dlscomfort, which in itself wss sufficient runish-

ment for snyone. This wes during the month of March,
end {t wes very cold. We were given one blanket eesch,

which wes eempletely insufficient when one is sleeping

on the bare floor. During the day we were forced

to sit in formetion, cross legged on the floor,
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without sny supnort or rest for the back or arms,
At times an unusuelly cruel gusrd would meke the
rounds of the cells, forcing everyone to kneel on
the wooden floor. This would sometimes be kept
up for six or eight hours.™

Deponent gives a further description of
torture at Bricdge House on pages 6 and 7:

"I sgw a number of tortures to a minor
degree in Bridge House while pezssing through the
car doors on my meny trips up to the office, I
saw men being given the waster trestment, being
burned with cigsrettes, being given shocks with
an electrical mechine of some kind, and almost
innumersble beatings with clubs end with the becks
of swords. Violent kicking with heesvy armv boots
on the prisoners! shins wes so common as to be
almost unnoticed. Severzl Chinese suffered brcken
legs from this while I was in Bridge House.

"The weter treatment consists of lashing
a man down fece up across the desk top. A bath
towel is then so rolled as to form a2 circle around
his nose and mouth, and a five-gallon
can_of water, which was generzlly mixed with the
vilest of humen refuse and other filth, such as

kerosene, wes then put handy. The msn wes then




24

25

14,182

guestioned, and if he did not respond, the water
was poured into the space mede by the bath towel,
forcing the nrisoner either to swsllow end inhele
the vile concoction or to strangle himself., This
is kept up, auestioning between doses, until the
men is at a ﬁoint of unconciovsness. Shortly be-
fore unconsciousness is reached, the men is frequent-
1y beaten scross the belly with a smzll iron rod.
After consciousness has left, he is usually svs-
rended bv the heels from a tackle directly overhead
end the water allowed to drain out of him. When he
has sufficiently recuperated, the treatment is
resumed,

",..After the wear I can produce the names
annd addresses of more than 30 white men who were
seriously tortured in Bridge House if they are
still zlive. Orly one of these wes zn American ==
Heslit,

"I do not know what the Japs were trylng
to leern by these tortures, The men who were tor-
tured seldom had any idea as to what wes reouvired
of them. Fer some reesson they frequently vicked
on men who knew nothing and who had done nothing.
The vprincipal question wes 'Are you mixeé up with

underground activities to 2id the enemy or sgainst




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

2

14,183

Japan®?! end senseless guections like this were
esked for hours and hours. The harshness of
treatment denended on the narticular sergeznt

end interpreter who were guestioning. Eech hzndled
the prisoner according to his own idess. One men
might be tortured once or possibly a dozen times,
One could never guess. The sergeants were given 2
completely free hand epvarently. Several Chinese
were so severely beaten that they died in their
cells, I gathered the impression that the officers
¢id not give explicit directions for guestioning,
but merely ordered so end so out for interrogstion.

It seemed to be generslly vnderstood emong all

Jepanese personnel that pvnishment would be inflicted

as and when recuvired, It is certsin thst =211
officers attached to the gendarmerie knew prscti-
cally every deteil of what wes going on beczuse
the cries, moans, and sounds of blows could be

heard over the whole building a2t most any time,"
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Prosecution document No. 8194, the affi-
davit of Sergeant Harold J. Hogue, sworn to 12
December 1945, is offered for identification, and
the marked exeerpts from this document are offered
in evidence.
THE PRESIDENT:  Admitted on the usual terms.
CLEFK OF THY COURT: Presecution's document
No., 8194 will receive exhibit No. 1902 for identifi-
cation only, and the marked excerpt therefrom will
receive exhribit No.41902A.
(Whereupon, the document above re-
ferred to was marked prosecutien's exhibit
No. 1902 for identification; and the ex-
cerpt therefrom was marked prosecution's
exhibit No. 19024 and received in evidence.)
COMMANDER CCLE: This affidavit relates to
the mistreatment of captured airforce persornrel at
Yochow, China. Upon refusing to give any informa-
tion, deponent was beaten with fists and a large
bamboo bat. Thereafter, he was strapped to a
ladder, given the water freatment and beaten. Next
day he was handcuffed and paraded through the village
for public ridicule,
Prosecution document No. 8193, the affi-

davit of 1st Lieutenant Hareld J. Klota, sworn to
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1| 5 December 1945, is offered for identification, ard

marked excerpts therefrom are offered in evidence.
THE PREFIDENT: Admitted on the hsual terms.,
CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's document

5 No. 8193 will receive exhibit No. 1903 for identifi-

6 cation only, and the marked excerpts therefrom will

T receive exhibit No. 1903A.

- 8 (Whereunon, the document above re- ‘
% ferred to was marked prosecution's exhibit
10 | No. 1903 for identification; and the ex-
e cerpt therefrom was marked prosecution's
i exhibit No. 19034 and received in evidence.)
' CCIT ANDEE. COLE: Deponent hailed out of his
i plane over China and was cantured by the Japarese. ;
g His right leg which was injured was arputated several ;
1? inches above the ankle by a Janarese civilian using E
' 2 | i@ crude knife and without anesthesia. A few days '
o8 thereafter, deponent, for not answering questions,
10
2; was beaten into unconsciousness, while he'lay in bed,
21f on three occasipns by a Japanese officer who used an é
22 | encased saber.
o Prosecution document No. 8024, the testimony
24

25 offered for identification, and marked excerpts

therefrom are offered in evidence,

\
|
|
|
of John R, delara, sworn to 18 February 194€, is |
|
|
i

|
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THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms,

CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's document
No, 8024 will receive exhibit No. 1904 for identifi-
cation only, and the marked excerpt therefrom will
receive exhibit No. 1904A.
(Whereupon, the document above re-
ferred to was marked prosecution's exhibit
No. 1904 for identification; and the ex-
cerpt therefrom was marked prosecution's
exhibit No, 19044 and received in evidence.)
COMMANDER COLE: This deposition relates to
conditions at Pootung Internment Camp. Deponent
states that during the winters of 1944 and 1945 the
internees had no heat whatever although the tempera-
ture was as low as 20° F. and although the Japanese
guards had heating facilities. Internees received
no clothing from the Japanese.‘ The food ration was
gradually reduced until, at the end, they were get-
ting one~-fourth the amount of meat originally issued.
Internees were exposed to air attacks and were not
permitted to mark the buildines until a week before
the end of the war,
Prosecution document No. 82114, the testi-
mony of Sergeant Elmer A. Morse, sworn to 2 November

1945, is offered for identification, and the marked
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excerpts therefrom are offered iﬁ_evideﬁéél
THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms.
CLERK CF THE COURT: Prosecution's document
No. 8211A will receive exhibit No. 1905 for identifi-
cation only, and the marked excerpts therefrom will
receive exhibit No. 1905A.
(Whereupon, the document above re-
ferred to was marked prosecution's exhibit
No. 1905 for identification; and the ex-
cerpt therefrom was marked prosecution's
exhibit No. 1905A and received in evidence.)
COMMANDEF COLE: Prosecution document No,.
8220, the affidavit of Corporal Herman E. Fayal,
sworn to 10 Octpber 1945, is offered for identifi-
cation, and the marked excerpts therefrom ocre offered
in evidence,
THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms.
CLFRK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's document
No. 8220 will receive exhibit No. 1906 for identifi-
cation only, and the marked excerpts therefrom will
receive exhibit FNo. 1906A.
(Whereupon, the document above re-
ferred to was rarked prosecution's exhibit
No. 190€ for identification; and the ex-

cerpt therefrom was marked prosecution's
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-exhibit No. 1906A and received in evidence.)

COMMANDER COLE: These twé affidavits de=-
scribe the conditions under which prisoners lived at
Hoten Camp near Mukden. Over two hundred prisoners
died as a result of malnutrition, lack of medical
care, and "ack of fuel. The buildings were irade-
guately heated although plenty of coal was available
for issue. During the first month and a half the
prisoners received maize and Chinese cabbage soup and
two sour buns a day. The food was frequently so con~
taminated that the prisoners could not eat it. All
requests for additional food, fuel and medical sup-
plies were refused by the Japanese.

Prosecution document No., 8123, the affi-
davit of John B. L. Anderson, sworn to 23 January
1946, is offered for identification, and marked
excerpts therefrom are offered in evidence.

THE PLESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms.

CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's document
No. 8123 will receive exhibit No, 1907 for identifi-
cation only, and the excerpt therefrom will receive
exhibit No, 1907A.

(Whereupon, the document above re-
ferred to was marked prosecution's exhibit

No. 1907 for identification; and the ex-
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cerpt therefrom was marked prosecution's
exhibit No., 1907A and received in evidence.
COMMANDEER COLE: This affidavit-states that
&6t Kiang Wan Camp the food was poor and the work very
hard. Deponent lost almost forty pounds while at
this camp. The prisoners were forced to work in
constructing a rifhe range for the Japanese Army and
also in polishing shells and repairirg tanks and
trucks. At Feng Tai Camp the prisoners slept on
the floor and received a cup of rice or flour ard a
cup of watery soup three times a day.
Prosecution document No. 8063, the affi-
davit of John F. Bronner, sworn to 20 October 1945,
is offered ¢ - identification, and the marked ex-
cerpts therefrom are offered in evidence.
THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms,
CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's document
No. 8063 will receive exhibit No., 1908 for identifi-
cation only, 2nd the marked excerpts therefrom will
receive exhibit No. 19084,
(Whereupon, the documeﬁt above re-
ferred to was marked prosecution's exhibit
No. 1908 for identification; and the ex-
cerpt therefrom wes marked prosecutionts

exhibit No, 1908A and received in evidence.)
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COMMANDER COLE: This affidavit states that
at Pootung Camp the food ration of the internees
was cut thirty-five per cent during the year 1944,
Prosecution document No. 8004, the affidavit
of Sergeant Roger P, Bamford, sworn to 5 March 1946,
is offered for identification, and marked excerpts
therefrom are offered in evidence.
THE PEESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms.
CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecutionts document
No. 8004 will receive exhibit No. 1909 for identifi-
cation only, and the marked excerpts therefrom will
receive exhibit No., 19094
(Whereupon, the document ahove re-
ferred to was marked prosecutionts exhibit
No. 1909 for identificatlion: and the ex-
cerpt therefrom was marked prosecution's
exhibit No. 19094 2nd received in evidence.)
COMMANDER CQLE: Prosecution document No,
8450, 4 ¢crtificate by Captain C. W, Willoughby,
Assistant Chief of Criminal Registry Division, Legal
Section, GHG, SCAP, sworn to 27 December 194¢, is
offered in evidence,
THI PFESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms.
CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's documeﬁt
No. 8450 will be given exhibit No. 1910.
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(Whereupon, the document above re-
ferred to was marked prosecution's exhibit
No. 1910 and received in evidence.,)

COMMANDER COLE: This certificate covers
the source and authenticity of prosecution document
Ne. 8004 as well as a number of other documents which
will »e offered in evidence shortly.

Prosecution document No, 8004B, the affi-
davit of Sergeant Roger D. Bamford, sworn to &

HMeroh- 1946, is offered for identification, and
marked excerpts therefrom are offered in evidence.

THE PRESIDEFT: Admitted on the usual terms.

CLEEK OF THL COURT: Prosecution's document
No. 8004B will receive exhibit No. 1911 for identifi-
cation only, and the marked excerpts therefrom will
receive exhibit No. 1911A.

(Whereunon, the document above re-
ferred to was marked prosecution's exhibit
No. 1911 for identification: and the ex-
cerpt therefrorm was rarked prosecution's
exhibit No. 1911A and received in evidence.)

CCHMIFANDER COLE: Prosecution documents No.
8004 and No. 8004B relate to conditions at Kiang
War and Woosung Camps. Deponent states that at both

camps the prisoners received 2 small teccun full of
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rice three times a day and a small amount of watery
soup twice a day. Priscners slept in barns cn the
earth floor with no stoves and no fuel for fires.
The Japanese made no attempt to provide medical care
The only medical attention was received from a
medical o“ficer among the prisoners. Four or five
prisoners a2t Kiang Wan Camp and approximately thirty

or forty orisoners at Woosung Camp died due to mal-

.nutrition, beri-beri and dyvsentervy.

Prosecution document No. 8218, the testimony
of Private James A, Gilbert, sworn to 14 November
1945, is offered for identification, and marked
excerpts therefrom are offered in evidence.

THE PFESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms.

CLiFK OF THT COU T: Prosccution's document
No. 8218 will receive exhibit No. 1912 for identifi-
cation only, and the marked excerpts therefrom will
receive exhibit No. 1912A.

(Whereupon, the document ahove re-
ferred tc was merked prosecutiyzn's exhibit
No. 1912 for identification: and the ex-
cerpts therefrom were marked prosecution's
exhibit No. 19124 and received in evidence.)

COMMAFDEL. COLE: Deponent states that during

the first few months he was 2t lMukden Camp about 250
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American prisoners died either from starvation or
dvsentery. No rmedical sunplies were available. The
food consisted of maize and sov bcans.

The priscners worked in nearby facterics
making steel helmets for the Japanese Army, air-
plane parts and gears for large calibre guns. Denon-

ent worked in a steel mill sixteen hours a dav.
During his stay in Mukden Camp as a result of the
hard work and poor food, he lost over sixty pounds in
weight.

Prosecution document No., 8206, the testimony
of Corporal Herman Hall sworn to £ October 1945, is
offered for identification, and marked excerpts
are offered in evidence,

THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms.

CLIRK OF TEE COURT: Prosecution document
No, 8206 will receive exhibit No. 1913 for identifi-
cation only, and marked excerpts therefrom will re-
ceive exhihit No. 1913A.

(Whereupon, the document above re-
ferred to wes marked prosecution's exhibit
No. 1913 for identification, ard the ex-
cerpts therefrom vere marked prosecution's
exhibit No. 19134 and received in evidence.)

COMMANDIE COLE: Devonent was corfined at
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Camp Hoten, Mukden. The camp was about six hundred
vards from a large }3g@nesc ammunition factory. There
was no designation on the prisoner-of-war camp. Dur-
ing a B-29 air raid nineteen nrisoners were killed
and about thirtyv were injured,

Prosccution document No. 8312, the testimony

of Corporal Floyd H. Comfort sworn to 17 December

}_.l
T )

945, 1s offered for idemtification, and marked
excerpts therefrom are offered in evidencec.
THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms,
CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's document
No. 8312 will receive exhibit No. 1914 for identifi-
cation only, and the marked excerpt therefrom will
receive exhibit No. 19134.i.
(Whereupon, the document above re-
ferred to was marked prosecution's exhibit
No. 1914 for identification; ond the ex-
cerpt therefrom was marked prosecution's
exhibit No. 1914A and received in e vidence.)
COMMANDER COLE: Deponent states that at
Woosung Camp and Kiang Wan Camp the »nrisoners were
used in working at a repair depot for all kinds of
military vehicles and also in polishing artillery
shell cases.

Prosecution document No. 8136, the affi-
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davit of Private Stephen M. Zivko, sworn to 6
Octob: r 1945, is offered for identification, and
marked excerpts therefrom are offered in evidence,
THT PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms.
CLEEK OF THE COUKT: Prosecution's document
No. %13€ will receive evhibit No. 1915 for identifi-
cation only, and markéd excerpts therefrom will re-
ceive exhibit No. 1915A.
(Whereupon, the document above re-
ferred to was marked prosecution's exhibhit
No. 1915 for identification; and the ex-
cerpts therefrom were marked prosecution's
exhibit 1915A and received in evidence.)
COMI'ANDER COLE: This affidavit confirms
the fact that prisoners at Kiang Wan Camp helped
to construct a rifle range and repaired Japanese
Army motor equipment. The affidavit also states
that at Kiang Wan Camp the prisoner working parties
were not permitted to take cover during air raids
until the planes were directly overhead, No sleep-
ing facilities were provided other than a straw mat
upon the brick floor.
That completes the evidence for the China

phase of this case.

THE -PPESTIDENT: The affidavits submitte® din
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COMMANDER COLE: I offer in evidence prose-
cution document No. 8391 which is & further synopsis
of evidence relating to Japan.

THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms.

CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's document
No. 8391 will receive exhibit No. 1616.

(Whereupon, the document above
referred to weas marked prosecution's
exhibit No. 1916 &nd received in evidence.)

COMMANDER COLE: Synopsis of Evidence. Japan.

Prosecution document No. 8006, the affidavit
of Major Thomes H. Hewlett, sworn to 2 October 1945,
is offered for identification; the marked excerpts
therefrom sre offered in evidence.

THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms.

CL¥RK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's cdocument
No. 8006 will receive exhibit No., 1917 for identifica-
tion only; the merked excerpts therefrom will receive
exhibit No. 1917A.

("hereupon, the document above
referred to was marked prosecution's exhibit
No. 1917 for identification, the excerpts
therefrom being merked prosecution's ex-
hibit No. 1917A end received in evidence.)

COMMANDER COLE: This affidavit describes
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the brutal treatment of prisoners of war in Camp
No, 17, Fukuoka, at which Major Hewlett was senior
medical officer during his internment, and gives the
following instances:

(A) Merine Corporal James GQ Pavlokos wes
confined in the guardhouse in December, 1943, on a
charge of theft, without food for & period of approx-
imetely 35 days, at the end of which period he died
of starvation. Deponent examined the body &nd esti-
mates that the weight of deceased had gone down from
170 pouncs to 55 pounds at the time of death.

(B) Private Noah C. Heard was executed in
May, 1944, by bayoneting for the repeated offense of
theft of food.

(C) Corporal Vzlter Johnson was confined
in the guardhouse in April, 1945, for talking to 2
Jepanese civilien miner. He wes permitted no food
and was subjected to severe beatings day and night es
2 result of which he died. TLeponent exemined the
body efter decth and saw many signs of severe beztings.

() Private William N. Knight was confined
to the guardhouse in Mey, 1945, for stezling & bun
in the mess hall., He was subjected to repested beat-

ings and torture, and died after about fifteen days.

Deponent wes not pefmitted to examine the body but
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is of the opinion that the man died of starvetion,
possibly complicated by pneumonia.

(E) Privete Worldly wes pnlaced in the guerd-
house in the spring of 1945 for heving & small piece
of zinc in his possession. After deeth, an examina-
tion of his body by deponent indicated thet dezth wes
the result of becting. Men in the guardhouse were
beaten with 2 2 x 4 sbout the length of a baseball
bat.

(F) 1In lderch, 1944, two prisoners of wer
were placed in the gusrdhouse and forced to kneel
for lone periods of time on bamboo, as = result of
which they developed geéngrene., It wes necessery to
amputcste both feet of one prisoner, and three toes of
the other,

(G) Denondent wes confined to the gucrdhouse
for six dzys in October, 1944, for submitting =
written complaint to the Jepenese doctor concerning
sick wen who were forced to work in the mine.

(H) During two years in this ccmp the medicel
depertment wes issued only sufficient Red Cross
medicines to ccre for five hundred men for three months,
although the camp reached the totzl population of

1780, Dépondent performed 135 major operations with-

out gloves and with inedequate instruments.
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Prosecution document No. 8022, the cffidevit
of 1st Lieutenent John H. sllen, sworn to 30 December
1945, is offered for identification; the merked ex-
cerpts therefrom sre offered in evidence.

THE PR:SIDINT: Admitted on the usual terms.

CL:RK OF TH. COURT: Prosecution's document
No. 8002 will receive exhibit No. 1918 for identifica-
tion only; the marked excerpts therefrom will receive
exhibit No. 19184,

(*hereuvon, the document &bove re-
ferred to was mcrked vrrosecution's exhibit
No. 1918 for identificetion, the excerpts
therefrom being mcrked prosecution's exhibit
No. 19184 #nd received in evidence.)

CO:LILANDER COLE: This sfficevit ds an eye-
witness cccount of the execution by bayoneting of
Privcte Nogh C. Heard, previously referred to in
prosccution document No. 8006. Denonent witnessed
the execution, which tock Blace without tricl, from
the window of ¢ nesrby building. The Jopsnese guerds
formed z semi-circle cround the prisoner who wes
dzzed from repected bectings, znd bsyoneted him £s
he set on the ground. The affidcvit stotes ot page 4:

"From the wincow, I s¢w thet @ semi-circle

of guerds hcd formed behind Pvt Heard. At & commond
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from Lt. Ken YURI, one of the gucrds ceme forwerd

and bayoneted Heerd in approximetely the middle of

his beck. I do not know this guard's name. Pvt. Heerd

grunted end fell forwerd from the impzct of the onrush-

ing guerd end begen to retech and twitch, meking

gesticulations similer to those of a brute thet hee

been mortzlly wounded. These gesticulations cavsed

him to roll on his back with his right side exposed

to the semi-circle of rucrds. TUron the return of

the first guerd to the semi-cirecle, on thc commond

of Lt. Ken YURI, & seccond guerd went forwerd end

plunged his beyonet into the exposed right side of

Heard's ¢bdomen, I do not know the neme of this

guerd eithir. The guerd withdrew ond the Japznese

doctor MURAO, Lt.Ken YURI, Sg. Mzjor MORATAKI, Inter-

preter OYI znd some of the gucrds went up to exemine

Hecrd's body. By this time, Heerd's actlions were

no longer violent; however, ¢ slight spesmodic twitch

cold be noticed in his hsends ¢nd feet, A& third

gusrd whose neéme I do not know then turned his rifle

butt up znd thrust the bayonet verticelly into Heard's

throat. The gucrds then proceeded to rcke across

Heerd's zbdomen, cutting it to bloody ribbons."
Prosecution document No. 8117, the cffidevit

of Fusilier Willirm Johnson, sworn to 4 Februsry 1946,
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is offered for ldentifications the merked excerpts
therefrom cre offered in evidence.
THE PRFSIDENT: Admitted on the usuzl terms.
CLFRK OF TH" COTRT: Prosecution's document
No. 8117 will réceive exhibit No, 1919 foridentifice-
tion only; the mecrked cxcerpts therefrom will re-
ceive exhibit No. 19194. '
(*hereupon, the document «bove
referred to wzs marked prosecution's ex-
hibit No. 1919 for identificstion, thé
excerpts therefrom beine mcrked prosccu-
tion's c¢xhibit No. 1919A @nd received in
e¢vidence.)
CO:F{ANDFR COLE: This effidecvit descrilbes
the brutal trectment of 2 prisoner of wer at Sendei
emp No. 1P on 4 Februcry 1945. The prisoner wes
in 2 very weck condition resulting from beriberl
cnd malnhtrition snd asked to see the medicel officer.
Vhereupon he wrs knocked down by ¢ Japcnese militery
gucrd end kicked in the stomach while lying on the
ground. He died thect cvening.
Prosccution document No. 8026, the sworn
affidevit of Ien Dougles Newlends, deted 12 April
1946, is offered for identificetion; the marked ex-

cerpts therefrom ere offered in evidence.
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THE PRESIDENT:  @Admittcd on the usual terms.

CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's document
No. 8026 will rceeive exhibit No. 1920 for identifica-
tion only; the marked excernts thercfrom will receive
cxhibit Neo. 19204.

(Yhercupon, the document ebove
rcferred to wes marked prosecution's cx-
hibit No. 1920 for identificetion, the
excernts therefrom being morked prosccu-
tion's exhibit No. 19204 snd received in
cvidence.)

COMMANDER COLE: This effidavit desecribes
conditions in prisoner of wer cezmps ot Moji and at
Haokodate No. 1. At the Hoji Hospitsl there were 180
prisoners e#nd cduring the two months thet dcponent
wes a potient cbout £ifty of these died, chiefly from
lack of mediczl ettention. At Hakodete Cemp No. 1
devponent sow the killing of = Dutch orisoner who hed
bcen cccused by the Jepcnese guards of theft. The
Dutch prisoner wes confined in the guardroom without
food ¢nd every few hours he wes teken from the cell
znd becten by the gusrds with fists, sticks and bells.
After & few days the prisonecr died.

The deponent wes scverly becten by the

Jepenese guards for refusing to order prisencrs to
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perform work for which they were unfit.

The prisoners €t this camp were employed
in the Muroran Stcel “orks which produced steel for
mcking gun barrels. Collective punishments were
imposcd on the prisoners for minor offenscs by fore-
ing the entire camp to stand on parede 211 night nd
then go to work the next morning.

Prosccution document No., 2662, Psrt 23,
the Report of the Jepenese Centrzal Investiegation
Committee relcting to Prisone¢rs of “er, dated
9 Jcnucry 1946, is offered in evidence.

THE. PRESIDENT:  Admitted on the usucl terms.
CL:RK OF THE COURT: Prosccutior's document
No. 2662, Part 23, will receive exhibit No. 1921.
(Whercupon, the documcnt cbove
referrcd to wes morkced prosecution's ex-
hibit No. 1921 =nd received in evidence.)
COMMIANDER COLE: This rcvort relztes to the
trcetment of captured 41lied zirmen in the Ezstern
Militery District of Jepan. From this documcnt which
wes written by the Jepanese ﬁuthoriti<s themselves,
it eppesrs thet 8l1licd airmen werc trcated with grect
brutzlity. The reportstates =t the bottom of peege 2,
csfollnws:

"Phe treatment of the cirmen of the Alliecd
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Forccs capturcd in the Eestern R:iepion were divided
into two cetcgories. First, if thcy were susvected
of violcting militerv regulztions, they were disnoscd
of by courts-mertizl. Sceond, 1f they were acguitted,
they were interncd in the POV cemps end trecated as
ordincry PO%. However, before these stevs werc taken
thcy ot first were detzined in the gucsrdhouse of the
Ecstern HMilitery Police Unit Hcadguarters as sus-
pccted violators of militcry regulations....During
the period of dctention there were 17 decths.™

Additional incidents showing the bruteal
trectment of Allied sirmen e£re set forth on psges 1
cnd 2 of the report &s follows:

On the night of May 25, 1945, 62 Allied
eirmeén who were internced in the detention housc of
the Tokyo Lrmy Prison &s suspected violetors of the
militcry regulstions were burned to dcath in the sir
reids.

A scriously injured pilot of & E-29 which
fell in Hiyoshi Villeege in Chibe Prefecturc reeeived
Kalshoku, thet is, he wes behesded on Mey 26, 1945,
on the ordcrs of the Jcpenese captein of the patrol.
The rceport adds thot there is an indicction thet
beyoncting of the body took place after death.

Or prege 27 of this document is set forth
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én &dditional report by thc Jdezpancse Investigetion
Committee dated 26 December 1945, rcleting to the
tre ctment of captured Allied zirmen in thc Tokel
or Esst.}n Sce Region. This revort states (perz-
graph IT, page 27):

"From Fabru:ry 11, 1945, when the Tokeil
(T.N. Bostern Sea) Militcry District was esteblished
until the time of truce, the number of surviving
cirmen of Allied piocncs who descended within the
District wes 44. Of these, six men =t the beginning
were Interned as vprisoners of war since 1t wes clear
that they had cttacked militery objeccts; and the
cleven men who leter Gescended on Mey 1l4th were sent
to courts-merticl beceuse they hed conducted indis-
criminate bombines end werc decply suspected of
being me jor war criminels; 27 men who lcter descendcd
efter thes latter pert of Moy, were disposed of by
militory regulftions without formel procedures of
the courts mertiszl duc to the situation zt that
time. It was decidcd that these men were cleerly
guilty of inhumen énd indiseriminste bombings."

THE PRESIDENT: Ve will recess for fifteen
minutcs,

(Whereupon, at 1045, o recess wes taken

until 1100, after whieh the proceedings were
rcsumed ¢s follows:)
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IIARSHAL OF THE COURT: The International
Militery Tribunal for the Far East 1s now resumed,

THE PRESIDENT: Commander Cole.

COMMANDER COLE: The document last intrcdnced
was prosecution document Neo. 2662, Part 23. 1In
regard to the executlon of the 27 airmen without
trial, the report further states on page 28 as
follows:

"Around !May of this year, the Headguarters
of the 13th Area Army (operational army formed in
conjunction with the Headquarters of the Tokail
Milltary District, with most of the personnel holding
concurrent positions'in the Headquarters of the
Military District) estimated that the time of the
landing on the mainland by the Allied Forces would
be around August. At that time, the whole Army was
concentrating on the preparations for the operation,
and the work of the Headguarters was alse extremely
busy. By chance the headgquarters recelved 11 men,
airmen who participated in the indiscriminate bomkblng
of Nagewya on May 14th, and discussions were going on
about courts martial for them., However, accompanying
the air raids which were getting more violent, the

situation was sueh that the number of airmen was

inereasing further, After_the latter part of May, the
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eniemy bombings seemed to have shifted to 4nhuman and
indiscriminate bombing of cities, aiming mainly at
destroving private houses with incendiary bombs, and
k¥i1lling and wounding of citizens, This was also
clearly perceived through investigation of these airmen.
"With the passing of time, the operational
work became busier than ever. Various situations
had te be taken care of speedily, and despite the
therough efforts of the nfficials and the people,
the damages caused by the indiscriminate bombings
became gigantic, and the hostlle feelings were reach-
ing the limit., Meanwhile, under the severe and contin-
uous air raids day after day, the administration of
these airmen was very difficult. In other words, the
area army decided that under the circumstances, sending
these men to courts martial which are complicated and
delaying, would not be consistent with the prevailing
state of affairs. Censequently, 11 men were executed
in the mountains of Miyazu, Akazu-Cho, Seto City on
June 28th, and 16 men were executed at the rear of
No. 2 office building cof the Headquarters on July 14,"
Prosecution document No, 2662, Part 24, the
report of the Japanese Investigation Committee relating

to Prisoners of War, dated 26 December 1945, is
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THE PRE-IDENT: Admitted on the usual terms.

CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's document
No. 2A62, Part 24, will receive exhibit No. 1922.

(Whereupoa, the document above
referred to was marked prosecution's ex-
hibit No. 1922 and received in evidence.)

COMMANDER COLE: This report relates to the
treatment of Allied Air Force personnel in the
Central Military District of Japan. The report
states (paragraph 2, page 1): -

"Total number of the Allied Air Force Flisht
Personnel who were captured within the Central Military
District by the Japanese Army was about forty-nine,
of whom three were sent to Tokyo; about six died from
injuries and sickness} two were put to death after
trail by court-martial; and the rest, of about thirty-
eight, were put to death without being court-martialed."

The report states (page 4) that the thirty-
eight airmen were executed without trial due to the
fact that the Japanese army personnel were too busy
prevaring defense operations against the intensified

air raids and anticipated an invasion by U.8. forces

- and that the Judicial Depatrtment was too busy with

cases of violation of military discipline, This is
set forth on page 4 as follows:
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"The intensification of air raids from June,

1945 cnwards, trought akout a gradual increase also

o

in the number of captured air flight personnel, but

()

4 |a%%hough the Ci ntral District M.P, Unit, following
5 {thorough investigatlons on the strength of the afore-
s Imentioried orders, secured evidence of violation of
Martial Law in each of these cases, these flight pers-
‘. : : E;,‘mnnel could not be brought bef;re Court-lMartial due
to the 19tk Area Army Headguarters (an operational
unit incorporated into one body with the Central
i Military District Headquarters, and the greater part
» |of whose personnel were holding additional posts with
the Military District Headguarters) being too busily
. loccuplied in the preparation of defense operations
against the intensified air-raids and supposed landing
_ 36 |on our mainland by the U.&. forces, and on account
'. . 7 |0f the Judicial Department, too, being kept busy in
18 |dealing with cases of vielation of military discibiine.
9 "At that time, tho Central Mfilitary Digtrict
0 Army opined that the intensification of air-raids since
5; |the autumn of the year before - especially %he fadt
22 |that many lives ard considerable private property
23 (had been destroysd as a result of the indiscriminate

24 | incendiary bombings on Tokyo, Nagoya, Osaka and Koke,

5 |ete., since March of this year, had roused the indignation
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of the nation -~ especially towards the flight personnel -

to an exceedingly high pitch..

"As, under the afore-mentioned circumstonces,
the Central District If, P, Unit recelved no instructiens
from the Central Milita;y District Headquarters,
regarding the measures to be taken against the flight
personnel, they contacted the Tokyo M.P, Headguarters,
and on the occasion of the first execution in the
beginning of July, same was carried out by also con-
tacting the Military District Headquarters.

"As stated above, the sald total of forty-
three persons were executed by shooting in several
lots by special personnel at the manoeuver area at
Nobutayama, Izumi-Kita Gun, Osaka Prefecture and the

firing range at Higashi-ku, Osaka City, from the

 period between the beginning of July to the middle

of August, and their bodies were buried at the same
places,”

Prosecution document No., 2662, Part 27, the
report of the Japanese Investigation Committeec relating
to Prisoners of War datgt 27 March, 1946, is offered
in evidence,

THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms.

CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution document
No. 2662, Part 27, will receive exhibit No. 1923.
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referred to was marked prosecution's ex-
hibit No. 1923 and received in evidence.)
COMMANDER COLE: This report confirms the
statement in prosecution documeﬁt No., 26f2, Part 24,
that of the forty-nine captured airmen two were
executed by ordor‘of a court-martial and six died of
injuries and illnesses, but indicates (page 5, annexed
sheet No¢ 1) that the number of airmen who were
otherwise executed was actually forty-one instead of
thirty-eight. The report also states (paragraph C,
1, 2 and 3, pages 27 and 28) that Lt. General OKIDA,
Sanji, the Military Police Commandant, in June, 1945,
issued a message to each Military District Police
Headquarters advising them that if captured airmen
could not »e disposed of immediately by courts-martial
perhaps other methods might unavoldably be used.
The report states at the top of page 2:
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In regard to the public Ffeeling

against the captured airmen,

"After the bombings of the Japanese !Mainland
were initiated, not only were fearful air raids acainst
important facilities continued, but in various places
the losses in lives and propertles of non-combatants

started to mcunt. Accompanying tris, the hostile

the neople began to increase. However,

in March wherr 1acge cities such as Tokyo, Nagoya,

uously.

Osaka and Kobe pegen to suffer ‘ndiscri=winate incen-
diary bombing raidés, and huge losses were suffered,
tle people's ?éelin;s suddenly became violent and
their hostile feelings increased. The general public

opinion against the captured airmen hardened conspic-

Later on, the indiscriminate bombings by

158 13- 3¢,

"C ;

"1'

A11ied aircraft became increasingly and ceaselessly

violent and the people's spirit of vengeance reached

The situation ceme to the point where

even Japanese airmen who parachuted down were in
danger of harm, because the people did not take time

to make distinctions.

Relations!'ip between the Central

District Military Police Unit Headquarters and the

Military Police Ieadguarters in regard to punishments.,

Accompanying the sharp increase in




ro

A3

e

10

11

15

16 |
17 |

in

19

20

21 |

14,214

2ir rsids against the meinland in the spring and
summer of 1945, the number of -~aptured airmen in-
creased considerably. However, for various reasons,
every unit was unable to speedily bring these ren to
courts martial. Because of this, the Nilitary Police
Unit in the various areas had difficulties in the
internment of these men on account of the poor and
crovded internment facilities. Around June of 1945,
Lieutenant General OKIDO, Saniji, the lNilitary Police
Commandant, after considering the zeneral state of
affairs, lssued a personal message using the name of
Colonel YAMAVWURA, Yoshio, Chief of the External
AfTairs Section of the Military Police Feaccuarters.
The message was issved to each VMilitary Police Tead-
cvarters Commendant in the Yorthern, Fortheastern,
Sastern, Tokai, Central, Chugokv, Shikoku, and the
""estern District in regard to the rancdling of .
captured airmen. |

B2 he gist of the s~id personal message,
according to the memories of trose who were then
connected with the NFilitary Police Headquarters, is

enerally as follows:

o

"Courts martial Tor captured airmen are
generally at a standstill. Because of this, it seems

that the interned personnel have increased and the
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variovs Military Police Units are Teeling extreme
difficrlties in the handling of these men. From
the standpoint of the Military Police, tiey rope for

~

the scceleration of the courts martial. There are
probably some men among the prisoners who carried
out inhuman and indiscriminate bombings, It is only
right that these men be immediately punished severely
accorcing to military regulations.

"IT it is impossible to meke irmediate
¢ispositions by courts martial, perhaps other
methods m2y unavoidably be used. However, it is
up to the Military District Feadquarters to cdecide
w-ich of the two methods should be adopted, and it
is not a matter to be h-ndled hy the lMilitary Police.
Tlerafore, it is best to make contacts with the
Chief of Staff of the Military District concerned,
accordirg to necessity. Moreover, it scems that he
adcded that tlis case should first have the independent
declision of the Chief of Staff of each Military
District.

"3, According to Major-General YAGATOMO,
Tsuguo, Commandant of the Military Police Unit Head-
quarters of the Central District, he was trying to
find a solution to the difficulties of the internment

of tre increased number of captured 2irmen. Since
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he receivad the aforeﬁentioneé personal message at
this time, it seems that he interpreted the intention
of the/message to mean imediate puniskment of the
captured airmen ané he ordered his officers to make
preparations accordingly.

"D. Releztionship between the !"ilitary Police
Urit Feadguarters of the Central District and the
Central "ilitary District Feadquarters in regard to
punishments.

"1, Around the end of June (or the begin-
ning of July), Maj&r-General NAGATOMO, Commandant
of the Militery Police Unit of the Central District
who received the said message, naid a visit to

Lieutenant General KUNITAKE, !Michio, the Chief of

o4
(3]
=

Staff of tre Central VMilitary District. FAGATOMNMO
made the following stafement: 'As a result of in-
vestigating captured airmen, we find that their
staterents are generally all alike. Therefore,
hereafter we will not submit every bit of inTormation
and e wish to take the appropriate measures for
trese azirmen.!

"Lieutenant General KUNITAKE did not think

rat this negotiation was something in connection

airmen, but he thought it was just a simple intelligence




14,217

report. Therefore, he answered, 'I acknowledge it,!

and turned his attention to extremely pressing
nroblems of operation preparations, and counter-
measures against air reids.

"Acoording to Lieutenant General KUINITAKE,

it scems that he never even dreamed that the purpose

of Majior-General NAGATOMO's wvisit vras the contact

for the important matter based uvpon the nersonal
mes<age from the Vilitary Police Unit Headouarters.
"2, In the early part of June (the exact

iate is not known) Major SHINAI, Ikomaro, of the

=0

Military Police Unit Headquarters of the Central
District visited Colonel OBA, Koiiro, a Staff 0fficer
of the Central Military District and said, 'Since we
have had contact from the Military Police Fcadgurarters,
we will punish the captured airmen who are at present
interned at the 'ilitary Police Unit of the Central
Bistrict!

"Thereupon, Colonel OBA ésked, 'Is it proved
that all of these captured airmen actually carried
out indiscriminate bombings?'! It scems that Major
SHIVAI answered, 'Yes.'!

"It appears that Colonel ORA thought that
these punishrents were matters concerning captured

airmen who were under the administration of the
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ilitary Police Unit of the Centrel District and

3

based upon the nlans of the higher Military Police

o

Headcuarters to which the unit belonged. Therefore
it seems that he answered, 'It 1s inevitable, if .
they ore to be punished by the Military Police Unit,!
thinking that it was unavoidable, since they were to

-

be nunished in the light of military regulations."

Prosecution document No. 2662, Part 25,
the report of the Japsnese Investigation Committee
dated 23 Tanuary 1946, relafing to treatment of
Allied Air Forece Perconnel in the 7estern District
of Tapan, ls offered in evidence,

TI'F. PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usuval terms.

CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's document
No. 2662, Part 25, will receive exhibit No. 1924.

(Whereoupon, the documcnt above
referred to was marked prosecution's exiiblt
No. 1924 and received in cvidence.)

COVMANDER COLE: Tkis report states
(paragraph 2, page 1):

"Of the Allied Air Torce Tlizht Personnel
captured by the Japanese Army within the Western
Tilitary»District, about eight were put to death on
the 20th of June, 1945 (Group 1), another, approx-

imetely eight men, on the 12th of August in the same
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year (Group II), and another, approximately fifteen
men, on the 15tk of the same month in the same vear
(Group III), by personnel of the sa2id "ilitary
District Feadquarters,"

The report further states in paragraphs
3, 4, and 5, commencing on page 1 as follows:

"II1. RE-EXECUTION OF GROUP I.

"As a result of various cities in the ilain-
land having suffered one after another from incen-
diary bombing by the Allied Torces ever since the and
of 1944, tre hostile feeling of the military and
government authorities, as well as the peonle, be-
came steadily aggravated, especially upon Fukuoka
City, the seat of the '"ilitarv District Headquarters,
being 2ir-raided on the 19th of June, 17045, which
resulted in the principal narts of the City being
reduced to ashes, 2nd p—esenting the tragic sicht of
large numbers of the general pecpulace being made
victims, whereuron the hostile fezling appears to
Fave become still further intensified.

"It was under the circumstances as per the
foregoing paragraph that about eight of the raptured
Fiizkt Persornel were executed by jersonnel of the
Military District Yeadguarters within its compound

on the 20th of June.
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"IV, RE-EXFCUTIO: 07 GROUP II.

"On entering into August, successive atomic
bomb rgids were made by the U.S. Army on the cities
of Hirostima and Nagasaki, vieti~izing the majority
of the citizens of botk cities, and upon it hecoming
%nown that the miserable plight of the said victims
was absolutely kevond wofds, the zeneral fesling of
animosity appears to have soared un to its zenith

m
agair

"It was under the circumstances as per the
Toregoing paragranh that about eisht captured Flight
Personnel were executed »y personnel of the lilitary
District Feadcouarters in a hill near the Aburayama
Crematorium in the soutiwest nart of Fukuoka City, on
the 12th of August.

"V. RE-EXECUTIOI OF GROUP III.

"Upon the war coming to an end on August
15th, various wild rumors became circulated through-
out Kyurbhu District, 2nd Fukuoka District especially
was thrown into an indescribable state of cornfusion
due to the weaker sex fleelng to places of refuge,
etc., due to the Tabricated report that a part of the
Allied Forces had alresdy landed, etc., and these
Tactors appear to have aroused a sense of intense en-

mity among a sectien of the officers of the Kilitary
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District Headquarters.

"It was under the circumstances as per the
foregoing paragraph that zbout fifteen captured
Flight Personnel were executed by personnel of the
Military District Headquarters in a hill near the
Aburayama Crematorium in the southwestern part of
Fukuoka City, on the 15th of August.”

Prosecution document No. 8223, the affidavit
of Yorio OGIYA, sworn to 8 February 1946, is offered
for identification and marked excerpts therefrom are
now offered in evidence.

THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms.

CLERX OF THE COURT: Prosecution's document
No. 8223 will receive exhibit No. 1925 for identifi-
cation only; the marked excerpts therefrom will receive
exhiblt No. 1925-4,

(Whereupon, the document above
referred to was marked prosecution's exhibit
No. 1925 for identification only; the excerpts
therefrom being marked prosccution's exhibit
No. 1925-A and received in evidence.)

COMMANDER COLE: This affidavit relates to
the execution of two United States airmen at Osaka on
18 July 1945. Trese are the same two airmen referred

to in evidentiary document No. 2662, Part 24. The
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afficavit states that ceponent acted as "itness

Public Procurator at the court mertial of the two
airmen and asked for tre death penalty., In answer
te the question as to what questior s wrere asked of

t the trial, the denonent stated (at the
top of paze 4):

"0 What were the cuestions asked and what
ansvers were given?
"A The cuestions asked were as follows:
"l. What unit they belonged and duties,
name, rank, age, schooling, profession.
"2, Places they bombed: Ilarch O, 1245,
Tokyo - Incendiary bomb from Saipan, March 14, 1945,
bombed Osaka., Merch 17, 1945, bombed Kobe.

"3, Radar explanation. Uelson ras asked
fo explain American radar system. Ilelson stated that
he admitted the fact that he:bombed Japan, but he only
obeyed his higher officers' orders.

"0. What was the wverdict of the Filitary
Discipline Conference?

"A., Lt., Nelson and Sgt. Auganus were found
zullty and sentenced to die by the firing squad."

Prosecution decument Wo, 8285, the affidavit
of Staff Sgt. Marshall S, Shellhsrt, sworn to 7 October

1245, is offered for identification and merked excerpts
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therefrom are now offered in evidence.

TEE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms.

CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's document
No. 8285 will receive exhibit No. 1926 for identifi-
cation only:; the excerpt therefrom will receive
exhibit No. 1926-A,

(Whersupon, the document above
referred to was marked prosecution's exhibit
No. 1926 for identification only; the excerpts
therefrom being markcd prosecution's exhibit
No. 1926-A and received in evidence.)

COMMANDER COLE: This affidavit states that
at Camp 5D, Kawasaki, the Japanese guards would beat
the prisoners with sticks, clubs and steel rods until
they were unconscious in many cases, and would then
throw water on them to revive them and beat them
into unconsciousness again. In many instances the
prisoners were burned with small pieces of burning
punk under the gulse of giving medical care. The

prisoners were also required to hold a bucket of water

or a sack filled with beans with their arms outstretched

until thkey dropped unconscious from fatigue.
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Prosecution docurent INo, 8071, the affi-
davit of Corporel John B, Lippard, sworn to 2 Octo-
ber 1945, is offered for identification. The marked
excerpts from this document are now offered in evi-
dence.

TEE PRESIDENT: [dmitted on the usual terms.

CLERX OF TE® COURT: Prosecution document
No. 8071 will receive exhibit No. 1927 for identi-
fication only, and the excerpts therefrom will
recelve exhibit No. 1927A.

("hereunon, the document above re-
ferred to was marked nrosecution's exhibit
No. 1927 for identification, and the excerpts
therefrom were marked prosecution's exhibit
No: 1927A ané received in evidence.)

COMIU.NDER COLE: This affidavit relates to
conditions at Kamioka Camp &nd confirms the fact that
a common form of punishment involved placing pieces
of smoldering punk upon the wrist, stomach, or neck
of the orisoners. . guard would stand over the
prisoners and beat him if he flinched or collapsed.
Deponent was burned in this manner and then beaten.

Prosecution document No. 8263, the afficdavit
of Gunner John B. Iullins, sworn to 3 November 1945,

is offered for identification. The marked excerpt
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there®r»om is now offered in evidence,

THE PRLSIDENT: J[dmitted on the usual terms.

CLLRX OF THi COURT: Prosecution document
No. 8263 will receive exhibit No., 1928 for identi-
fication only, and the.marked excerpt therefrom will
recelve exhibit No. 19284,

("hereupon, the document above re-
ferred to was merked prosecution's exhibit
No. 1928 for identificetion, and the marked
excerpt therefrom was marked prosecution's
exhibit No. 1928A and received in evidence.)

COII’NDER COLE: This affidavit describes
the torture of two prisoners of war at Yamanl Canp,
Shikoku, in March 1945, The affidavit states, on
page 5:

"At Yamani Camp on the. Jap Island of
Shikolku, about liarch 1945, Gunner Basil Jones and
Gunner Allan Orr, both of the 2/15 Fd. Regt., were
accused of stcaling sugRr.

"They were taken away under the orders of
the Jap WO known as 'Happy Jack! for questioning.
They denied having stolen the sugar, and told the
truth, that they had obtained it from their Jap
gucrds in exchange for cigarettes from th.ir Red

Cross parcel.
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"1Hawpy Jack! refused to belicwve this and in

1

5 an e¢ffort to extract a ¢onfession of theft from them

5 he spiked their hands to tables, using zn ordinary

4 type of office spike file. The spike was driven right
5 through the hand sceveral times near the knuckle joints.
¢| He then prised and lifted foreibly the finger nails of
. the men, using-2 paper knife as allever.

3 The affidavit states that working conditions

-

9| at this camp were very bad. The prisoners had to live
10/ on a spell guantity of rice and barley end use their

11| few cents a day work pay to buy any food they could.

12| They weré so starved they cte the entrails of dogs and
13 | when they could get it horse flesh. The work in the

14 | copper rine was twelve hours o day, with one daoy off

15 | each rionth,

16 THE PRESIDENT: Cormender Cole, my attention
171 is directed to page 3 of exhibit No. 1925A. In that

181 exhibit the ar Linistry in Tokyo is rentioned and also

191 General UCHIY A ond General H.TA.

COMI"ANDER COLE: I will be glad to read that
& yaragraph fron court exhibit No. 19254.
22

THE IIONITOR: Ir. Prosecutor, would you kindly
Z
E point out --
24 B

COLTZ.NDER COLL: This is cdocument 8223,
25

page 3.
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THE MCONITOR: "hat paragraph, Lr. Prosecutor?

COMIL.NDER COLE: On page 3, in the middle of
the page, correncing: "Q Who instructed you to ask
for the death penalty of Nelson and Auganus?"

THE HONITOR: Thank you very ruch. Yill you
give re just one noment, please.

COIL/NDER COLE: Docunent 8223, on page 3,
recds as follows:

"Q Yho instructed you to zsk for the death
penalty of Nelson cné Juganus?

"A LAfter Haj. Gen. OTAHIRA completed his investi-
gation, he wrote an opinion hased on his investigation
and forwarded this opinion te Lt. Gen. Eitaro UCHIY.IL,
Commander of the Central Arny Headquarters,to get an
apnroval of the death scntence. Then after obtaining
the approval of Gen., UCHIY/MLi, IHlaj. Gen. OTLH.R. took
his opinion to Gencral HAT. who was in command of the
Sceond General /rrmy and 2lso got his, approval of the
death penalty. Lastly ilej. Gen., OTIHIRA took the
opinion to the VWar lMimistry in Tokyo and the death
penalty was also aporoved. Then on the 18th day of
July, 1945, I »rescnted this opinion with the approvals
of Gen. UCHIYAMA, Gen, HATA and the Yar iinistry, to
the iilitary Diseipline Conference and demanded the

death penalty by readiné the opinion cné the approvals

Y

.

|
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to the Judges of the llilitary Discipline Confercnce.
"Q Was Lt. Nelson and Sgt. Auganus pernitted to
oy anything in their own defense at the Hilitery
Discipline Conference?

"A I rerember Nelson saying that he was only
obeying the orders of his higher officers that he
bomb Japani I don't fremember Sgti Augenus saying
anything. That wos his defense,"

IR. BLEVETT: If the Cotirt please --

THE PRESIDENT: Iir, Blewett,

IR. BLEVETT: Inasmuch as one of the
accused hes been nentioned in this affiddvit, we feel
that the witness should be produced, if cvailable, Iay
we have a2 ruling on the request, sir,

THE PRESIDENT: The matter is of wvital
importance, and the witness, if available, shovld be
produced.,

COMIILNDER COLE: Since the Court desires it,
the vprosccution will rmake cvery c¢ffort to procure this
witness.

Prosecution document No, 8284, the affidavit
of Private Owen R. Kobert, sworn to 16 September 1945,
is offered for identification. The narked excerpts
therefron are offered in evidence.

THE PRLSIDENT: /[dmitted on the usual terms,
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CLERK OF THi COURT: Prosecution document
No. 8284 will reeceive exhibit No. 1929 for identifica-
tion only, and the rarked excerpts therefror will re-
ceive exhibit No., 19294.
("hereupon, the document above re-
ferred to was marked proscecution's exhibit
No. 1929 for identification, and the merked
excerpts therefrorn were merked prosecution's
exhibit No, 19294 and received in evidence.)
COLTiILNDER COLE: This affidovit describes the
maltrecatment of the prisoners at Camp No, 17, Onuta,
Deponent was forced to kneel on bamboo poles in the
guardhouse for five hours and was beaten with a cludb
about six inches wide, 1} inches thiek and about as
long as a baseball bat, 4in Justralicon had to have
both legs amputated above the ankle beecuse his feet
froze when he was forced to kneel on bamboo poles.
Deponent saw prisoners beaten with steel
rods about 4 inech thick and three or four feet long,.
Sorme of the prisoners were rade to stand in a puddle
of water and then were shocked unconscious by a 110
volt clectric wire. Sore prisoners caught pneunonia‘
by having cold water thrown on them in the winter just
as they started out for work.

Prosecution document No. 8051, thc affidavit
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1 of Corporal .. L. Owens, sworn to 1 Novermber 1945,

2 | is offered for identification, The rarked cexcerpts
5i therefrorm are offered in evidence.

4 THE PRESIDENT: /cdmitted on the usual terms.
5 CLIERI. OF THE COURT: Prosecution cocument

6 Ho. 8051 will reccive exhibit No, 1930 for identifi-
7 cation, =nd the marked excerpts therefror will receive

- exhibit Ne. 19304.

? ("hereupon, the docurment above re-
10 ferred to was marked nrosecution's exhibit

11 No. 1930 for identification, and the marked
= excerpts therefrom were m-orked prosecution's
™ exhibit No. 19304 and received in evidence.)
= COM'iNDER COLE: This affidavit describes
15

the torture of a U. S. Marine Private at Camp No. 8,

® Hiteshi in June, 1945, .11 the Japonese guards,

- numbering about ten, beat the prisoncr with sticks,

= fists, and clubs off and on for about fivec hours.

1? They threw water on him to revive hin, and then beat
2: him again. He was beaten so badly that the United

5 States Lrmy doctors ot first did not expeet him fo

o live.

i Prosecution document Fo. 8142, the affidavit
b of "arrant Officer James Gatley, sworn to 18 liay 1946,

is offered for identification. The iiarked excerpt
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therefrom is offéred inAévidence;
THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms.
CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution docunent
No, 8142 will receive exhibit No. 1931 for identifica-
tion only, and the marked excerpt therefrom will re-
ceive exhibit Neo. 1931A.
("hereupon, the document above re-
ferred to was marked prosecution's exhibit
No. 1931 for identification, and the marked
éxcerpt therefrom was marked nrosecution's
exhibit No. 1931A and receiveé in evidence.)
COMMANDER COLE: This affidavit states that
in December, 1944, at Kobe a prisoner was accused of
selling a raincoat to @ Japanese workman and was
beaten by a Japanese lieutenant and twelve Japanese
guards with fists, rifle butts, and wooden swords.
Thereafter he was put in the guardroon with no
clothing whatever and only one blanket. The average
temperature at this time was 20 degrees below zero.
The prisoner was beaten for half an hour every day
fsr 19 days and eventually went mad and died.
Prosecution document No. &016, the affidavit
of Liewtenant C. E. Bucke, sworn to 24 January 1946,
is offered for identification. Ilerked excerpts

therefrom are offered in evidence,
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THE PRESIDENT: .4dmitted on the usual terms.
CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution document
No, 8016 will receive exhibit No. 1932 for identifica-
tion only, and the narked excerpts therefrom will re-
celve exhibit No., 19324,
(Whereupon, the document above re-
ferred to was marked prosecution's exhibit
No. 1932 for identification, and the marked
excerpts therefrom were marked prosecution's
ex'1ibit No, 19324 and received in evidence.)
COMLIANDER COLE: This affidavit relates to
the maltreatment of »risoners of war at the mining
camp of lfiyata., Officers as well as enlisted prisoners
were compelled to work 13 hours a day in the fields,
unloading sacks of rice and coal and emptying latrines.
Officers were allowed 360 grams of rice and 190 grams
of flour a day. During the first two weeks at the
carp the officers lost an average of cbout six pounds
in weight. A4All Japanese, military and civilian, were
allowed to administer corporal punishment for any
offense real or faneled, 4&ll Japampese, inecluding boys
of sixteen, had to be saluted at 211 times, even in the
dark,
lfedical arrangements were very bad. Deponent

was of the opinion that the Japanese could have made
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things very much better if they had wanted te. The
Japanese non-commissioned officers who had no knowledge
of medicine could overrule the Dutch medical officers
who were looking after the prisoners.
On 7 August 1945, about ninety to a hundred
British officers were beaten with bamboo poles and
sticks because the senior officer had attempted to
see the camp commandanf to make a complaint about a
ten per cent reduction in the rice ration.
Prosecution document No, 8077, affidavit of
Captain A. L. Maher, sworn to 27 Novenber 19¢§, is
offered for identification, IMarked excerpts fhere—
from arc offered in ovidence.
THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms.
CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution document
No, 8077 will receive exhibit No. 1933 for identifica-
tion only, and the marked excerpts therefrom will re-
ceive exhibit No. 19334,
(Whereupon, the doeument above re-
ferred to was marked prosecution's exhibit
No., 1933 for identification, and the marlked
excerpts therefrom were rmarked prosecution'!s
exhibit No, 19334 and received in evidence.)
COMMANDER COLE: This affidavit relates to

the ricstreatment of prisoners of war at Ofuna Camp.
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Denonent states (page 3):

"Te were compelled to line up in the court-
vard and the Japanese guards would take turns beat-
ing us with wooden clubs about four feet long and one
and one-helf inches square, which they held in btoth
bands. These were not clubs selected at random, but
were regular issue to the Jepenese guards., While many
of the beatings were dve to the sadism of the Japnanese
guards, others were meted ovt by the camp commandant
as well as his superior officer in the Japanese Navy***
Uncer the guise of physiecel reconditioning, Japanese
neted out severe punishment and beating. Ve were
forced to run for long periocds of time and any prisoner
lagging behind or dropping from the line from exhaus-
tion was beaten with the two~handed wood clubs. Ve
were forced to do !'push ups! ond other violent exer-
cises for long neriods of time. Failure to complete
these 'exercises! in a manner satisfactory to the
Japanese guards would result in a beating."

Prosecution document No, 8043, the affidavit
of William R, Leibold, sworn to 26 October .1945,
is offered for identification, Ilerked excerpts there-
from are offered in evidence.

THE PRESIDENT: /cdmitted on the usual terms.

CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution document
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. No., 8043 will receive exhibit No. 1934 for identifi-

- ation only, and the marked excerpts therefrom will

>|  receive exhibit No. 19344,

. (Whereupon, the document above re-

5 ferred to was marked prosecution'’s exhibit

é No. 1934 for identification, and the marked

g excerpts therefrom were marked nrosecution's

¥

5 exnibit No. 19344 and received in evidence.)

; COLLILNDER COLE: This affidavit confirms

e the mistreatment of prisoners of war at Ofuna Camp

i: and gives several instances of mistreatment of

e captured airmen resulting in deatn.

2 Prosccution document No. 8289, the affidavit

& of George licRae, sworn to 9 October 1945, is offered

is for identification. !Merked excerpts therefrom are

‘ . offered in evidence.

s THE PRESIDENT: .dmitted on the usual terms.

5 CLERK OF Tiltk COURT: Prosecution document

P No. 8289 will rececive exhibit No. 1935 for identification

i only, and the merlhed excerpts therefrom will receive

o exhibit No. 19354,

5 ("Thereupon, the document above re-.

o4 ferred to was marked »rosecution's exhibit

2 No. 1935 for identification, and the marked
excerpts therefrom were marked nrosecution's
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~exhibit No., 1935A and reccived in evidence,)

COMZL.I'DER COLE: This affidavit states that
at Headquarters Camp, Osaka, following a B-29 air
raid in /[pril, 1945, evening roll call was called
for the 500 or 600 prisoners and every nan answering
to the number "29" was taken out, beaten severely
with bamboo sticks and forced to Imeecl on rock piles
for about 13} hours.

Prosecution document Io. 8234, the affidavit
of Chief Boatswain's llate Philip ©¥. Samders, USK,
sworn to 21 September 1945, is offered for identifi-
cation. Ixcerpts therefrom are offered in evicdence.

TED PRESIDENT: J.Admitted on the usual terms,

CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution document
No. 8234 will receive exhibit No. 1936 for identifiea-
tion, and the marked excernts therefrom will reeeive
exhibit No. 19364.

("hereupon, the document above re-
ferred to was marked prosecutionts exhibit
No. 1936 for identification, and the marked
excerpts therefrom were marked nrosecﬁtion's
exhibit No. 19364 and received in evidence.)

COMMENDER COLE: This affidavit describes
conditions existing at the Osaka lain Canp at Honcho

and confirms the previous affidavit as to the B-29
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beatings.

The nrisoners at this camp were compelled
to work in various Osaka steel plants making parts
for tanks, trucks and shipsy and also as stevedores

hey loaded and unloaded ammunitiony tank parts,
nlane parts, rifles ond other military equipment,
The canp was within a few tlocks of warehouses,
ferries and piers at which men of war frequently
were tied up. The camp was not marked and was wiped
out with the surrounding area in a B-29 raid in

June 1945,

The affidavit states that beatings were
a2 very common procedure. Deponent was severely
Leaten at least twenty-five times during his stay
at this camp, Over 95 per cent of the prisoners
received a severe beating at one time or another.
ibout twenty-five or thirty prisoners had their ear

drums broken Ly blows on the head.
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The affidavit states on pages 6, 7 and 8:
"Other favorite punishments used by the Jap-
anese were restrictions on the amount of focod a man
could hsve, including tompletely cutting off his
food for one or two days, cutting out the food of
the whole barracks for the offense of one msn, forc-
ing 2 men to stand with s bucket of ssnd over his
heed with his arms stiff, forcing a man to kneel
on the cobblestones, which were very sharp, for a
period of two or three hours, or putting a msn in
a water tank, which served the camp with fire water,
for the night. 1he tank was about five feet deep
and this punishment was administered even in cold
weather. At least tﬁo or three men in the cemp
were hit daily with swords in scebbards, rifles, sticks
or any other weapon handy at that time., ***

"The average number of men in our czsmp was
between 650 and 700 men., Of these, about 120 or
more men died in the 2% years we were interned at
hancho, *¥x Lost of the deaths sccurred from pneu-
monia, beriberi or dysentery.

"Zbout 15 of the deaths in the camp were due,

I believe, to forcing the men to work while sick
and while giviang them no medical attention."

"The Japenese provided us with practicslly no
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medicine or medical or surgieal facilities while we
were in camp. Although wé had experienced men to
treat our sick and Wounde&, we had no facilities
they could use. In March 1943 we received 40 cases
of medicine and medical supplies from the hed Cross.
These were supposed to serve the 22 camps in the
Ogaka area. However, the Japanese refused to allow
anything more than z small trickle of these supplies
tc be delivered to the other Osska camps. At the
time the camp was wiped out on 1 June 1945, we still
had sbout 90 per cent of these medicsal supplies on
hand, although they could have been used very well
to save the lives of men and prevent their suffering
in the other 0Osska camps."

srosecufion Document No. 8197, the affidavit
of Fvt. H. H. Pauley, sworn to 6 October 1945, is
offered for identification. The marked excerpts
therefrom ere now offered in eviaence.

THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms.

CLEKK OF THE COURI: Prosecution document
No. 6197 will receivé exhibit No. 1937 for identifica-
tion, and the marked excerpts therefrom will receive
exhibit No. 1937-L.

(Whereupon, the document above referred

to was marked prosecution's exhibit No, 1937
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for identification; the excerpt therefrom being
marked prosecution's exhibit No. 1937-2 dnd
received in evidence.)
COMMANDER COLE: 1his affidavit states that
at Kobe Camp No. 3 there were about sixty deaths
the first winter, most of which were due to lack
of medical care gnd melnutrition.
frosecution Document No. 8074, the affi-
davit of Sgt. %. h. Linderfelt, sworn to 4 October
1945, is offered for identification. The marked
excerpts therefrom are now offered in evidence.

THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the ususl terms.

CLERK OF THE COURT: ' Prosecution document No.

5074 will receive exhibit No. 1938 for identification

only, end the marked excerpts therefrom will receive
exhibit No. 1938-4.

(Whereupon, the document above referred

to was marked prosecution’s exhibit No. 1938

for identifieations the cxcerpt therefrom

being marked prosccution's exhibit No. 1938-A

and received in evidence.)

COMMANDER COLE: Shis affidgvit describes the

excessive and illegel punishment inflicted for miner
infractions of the rules upon prisoners nf war at

Yokkaichi Camp. Deponent states at page 1:
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"Lt three separate times 1 witnessed priso-
ners (five in 211) who were strung upon ladders,
hends tied to upper rungs so that their feet could
not touch the ground. They were mede to remein in
that position from three to four hours at 2 time
for seversl deys. Sometimes weights were placed
on their feet. When in that pesition they were
besten with sticks, belts and fists. Generally
these bestings produced open cuts on their bodies
into which guards threw szlt. During this treatment
the prisoners were given no food. Three of this
group of five men were given this punishment for
heving stolen food znd the other two for trying to
get out of the barracks building during =ir reids.
This punishment was so severe that the men begged
the Japsnese guards to kill them."

Frosecution document No. 8291. the affidsvit
of Sgt. Frenk k. Pick, sworn to 8 October 1945, is
offered for identificstion. 1he marked excerpts
therefrom sre offered in evidence,

THE PHESIDENT: Admitted on the usuel terms.

CLERK OF THE COURT: rrosecution document
No., 8291 will receive exhibit No. 1939 fer identifics-
tion only, snd the excerpts therefrom will be exhibit

Nho. 1939-4.
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(Whereupon, the documcnt sbove referred
to wss marked prosecution's exhibit No. 1939
for identification; the excerpt therefrom being
mzrked prosecution's exhibit No. 1939-4 and re-
ceived in evidence.)
COMMANDEE COLE: This affidsvit describes ¢
czse of mess punishment at Hirohats Cemp in lay,
1945, Affient stetes that as 2 result of the theft
of a quantity of food z2ll the prisoners were com-
pelled to remasin kneeling for epproximetely six hours.
£t the end of that time nine prisoners confessed to
the theft end were thercupon beaten by the cesup
steff with basebzll bats, clubs, rcpe and fire hose
for gbeut four snéd one-hslf hours, when one of the
prisoners beceme unconscious he would be revived
and then beaten zgain.
In cnother case described in the 2ffidevit
2 prisoner who insdvertently feiled to sszlute z Japean-
ese gusrd was given the wster cure for sbout zn hour
enG then beaten into unconsciousness.
TLE FLESIDENT: Y%e will recess new until helf-
pest one.

(vhereupon,. et 1200, = recess wes teken.)
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AFTERNOON SESSICN

The Tribunal met, pursuant to
resess, at 13300
MARSHAL OF THE COURT: The International
Military Tribunal for the Far East is now resumed.
THE PRESILENT: Commander Gole.
COMIYANDER COLE: Prosecution document

No. 8078, the afficavit of Staff Sergeant William

Mahoney, sworn to 12 March 1946, is offered for iden-

tification. Iliarked excerpts therefrom are offered

in evidence,

THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms.

CLERK OF THE CQOURT: Prosecution's cocument

Ne. 8078 will receive exhibit No. 1940 for identifi-

catlion only. The marked excerpt therefrom will -
receive exhibit No. 1940-A.
("Thereuvon, prosecution's document
No. 8078 was marked prosecution's exhibit
No. 1940 for identification; and the excerpt
therefrom was marked vrosecution's exhibit

No. 1940-A and received in evicence,

COMIANDER COLE: This affidavit states that

at Camp No. 3, Fukuoka, one prisoner stole three fish

anc as a result all the prisoners in the camn were
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cdenied food auring two meals.* Not only the culorit,
but all the other men on his detall were severely
beaten.
Another vrisoner stole a Javnanese shirt, and
as a punishment all the prisoners in his barracks
were required to stand up all night and wer= then
denied breskfast, Six other »nrisoners in the same
barracks were severely beaten for not turning the
culprit in. Such collective punishments were sanctioned
by the commanding officer of the camp, who was alwavs K
present at the time. Protests were made about these
collective punishments, but nothing was ever cone.
Prosecution document No. 8095, the affidavit
of Sargegnt Matthew L. Monk, sworn to the third day
of October 1945, is offered for identification., !Marked
excernts therefromw are offered in evidence.
THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms.
CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's document
No. 8095 will receive exhibit No.1941 for icdentification
only. The marked excernt therefrom will receive
exhibit No, 1941-A.
(Whereupon, prosecution's cocument
No. 8095 was marked prosecution's exhibit
No., 1941 for icentification; ana the excerpt

therefrom was marked prosecution's exhlbit
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No, 1947 -4 and receivec in ‘evidence,

COMMANLER COLE: This affidavit describes an
instance of excessive and illegal punishment which
occurred at Norima Camp near Hagoya. A prisoner named ;
Wagner was driven by hunger to steal fooé from the
camp galley on several occasions. After the second
theft, Wagner was unable to return to his barracks in
time to avoid aiscovery, and in order to escape punish-
ment he attempted suicide. '/hile in a weakenead
condition from loss of blood, Wagner suffered the fol-
lowing tortures at the hands of the Japanese camp
personnel:

a. The Japanese commanding officer, the
camp non~eommissioned officer and the interpreter each
kicked Wagner in the head four or five times as he lay
on the ground.

b. Wagner was tied hand and foot ancé seated in

ifront of the guardhouse for a period of 72 hours, cduring

which time he was nermitted no food or water, and the
Javanese campvpersonnel beat him with clubs.

¢c. Thereafter "gagner was placed in the guard-
houde on reduced rations. He was to receive a GI spoon-
ful of rice and one-half cup of tea three times a cay
for thirty days.

1

' d. When th'is period had almost elapsed, the
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Japanesg announced that '"Tagner was dead. No examination
of the body was permitted, but it was the opinion of
the priseners who saw Wagner placed in the casket that
he was still alive and breathing at that time.
Prosecution document No. 8171, the affidavit
of Corporal Alexis J. Mott, sworn to 13 October 1945,
is offered for identification. HMarked excerpts there-
from are offered in evidence.
THE PRESILENT: Admitted on the usual terms.
CLEREK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's document
No. 8171 will receive exhibit No. 1942 for identification
only. The marked excerpt therefrom will receive exhibit
No. 1942--A,
(Whereupon, prosecution's document
No. 8171 was marked prosecution's exhibit
No. 1942 for identification; and the execerpt
therefrom was marked prosecution's exhibit
No. 1942-A and received in evidence.)
COMMANDER COLE: This afficavit states that at
Camp D1, Yokohama, prisoners were forced to work in
shipyards builcing aifferent typves of vessels, including
naval cruisers, aircraft carricers ané tenders, and
preparing many types of Japanesc¢ navigl vessels. No
bomb shelters other than open ditches were provided

for the prisoners.
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Prosecution cocument No. 8118, affidavit of
Lleutenant Colonel Robin R, Petrie, sworn to the 29th
day of January 1946, is offered for identification, and
marked excerots thersfrom are offered in evidence,

TiE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms.

CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's document
No. 8118 will receive exhibit No. 1943 for identification
only. The marked excerpt therefrom will reczive 2xhibit
No. 1943-A,

(Whereupon, prcsecution's document
No. 8118 was marked prosecution's =xhibit
No. 1943 for identificationj and thes excerpt
therefrom was warked prosecutionfs exhibit
No. 1943-A and received in evidence.)

COI™MANDER COLE: This affidavit states that
at Motoyama Camp the prisoners were compelled to work
in a coal mine an average of twelve hours daily.

Safety conditions were wholly inadequate and this

led to a number of unnecessary injuries. The floor of
the mine was often covered with water up to one foot in
depth.

In the spring of 1943, deponent complaineé to

the Red Cross representative about the long working

hours under unsatisfactory conditions and the fact that ;

the men had been given no day off curing the entire mont%
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preceding. Shortly after this, deponent was beaten
by the scnior Japanese non-commissioned officer on the

prctext that he was responsible for a breach of some

representative made another inspection, deponcnt was
placed in solitary confinement for five days uvon the
same pretext in order that he should not be able to
repeat his complaint to the Red Cross representative,
Prosccution cocument No. 8266, the affidavit
of Oliver B. G. Reberts, sworn to 30 August 1946, is
offzred for identification, and marked excerpts there=-
from are offered in evidence.
THE PRESILENT: Admitted on thz usumal terms.
CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosccution's document
No. 8266 will rececive exhibit No. 1944 for identifica-
tion only, and the marked exccrpt therefrom will recelve
exhibit No. 1944-A,
(Whercupon, proszcution’s document
No. 8266 was marked prosccution's zxhibit
No. 1944 for idcentification; an@ the excernt
thercfrom was marked prosccution's exhibit
No., 1944-A and received in cviaence.
COMIANDER COLE: This affidavit describes the
illegal concitions of work in the camp at Orio.

The affidavit states that the prisoners were
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put to work in a coal mine whore conditions were very
bad. There was a lot of water in the mine and the roof
was aangerous. On one occasion the roof fell im and
causea two or three deaths. The men were forced to
work ten hours a day and on one occasion went for
twenty-one days without rcst.

Affiant states, page 1:

"In the winter time the cold was intonss and
we were given very thin blankets which did not keo
us warm. In conscguence, there were a number of cases
of pnecumonia and five or six Australians disd from
pncumonia,

"American Red Cross parccels were sent to the
camp but most of the contents wers stol:zn by Japanese
guards.,

"Throughout the whole of the time that we were
in this camp medical supplies were very short and be-
cause of this a number of deaths took place.

"Onc Japancese at this camp with 2 name like
'Degus! used to pick th: licz off the men's clothes
and make the men eat them."

Prosecution document No. 8029, the affidavit
of Captain Jamss F. Lawrcnce, sworn to 20 January 1946,
is offered for identification. Marked excervts there-

from arec offered in evidence.
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THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms.
2 | CLERK OF THE COURT: Pvwosecution's documant
3 | No. 8029 will receive exhibit No., 1945 for identification
4% only. The marked excerpt therefrom will receive exhibit

5 i NO- 1945"A0

6 (Wherzsupon, prosccution's document

- No. 8029 was marked prosescution's exhibit

3 No. 1945 for identification; and the excaerpt

9 | therefrom ®as marked rrosecution's exhibit

10 No. 1945-4 and received in evid:nce.)

11 COMMANDER COLE: This affidavit describes the

12 | working concitions at Hosakura Camp. The prisonecrs

13 | arrived at the camp from Singapore wearing tropical
Lglclothes. No clothing was issued by the Jepanese although
15 | the Japancsc laborers were supplicdéd with warm clothing.
16 | The prisoncrs performed harc manual labor in a mine,

17 | The rations were so inadequate that all prisonars

18 | suffered from malnutrition. In February 1945, twe

19 | prisonars a week died of pneumonia, About sixty

20 | prisoners in all dicd as a rasult of starvation and the
21 | inhuman treatment of the Japanese.

22 Prosccution éocument No, 8082, thc statement
25| of John H, Farshall, datcd 8 September 1945, is offared
24 | for identification. larked cxcerp$s thorcfrom are

25 | offered in evidenec,
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THE PRESILENT: Admitted on the usual terms,
CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's docum:nt

§]

|
3 |[No. 8082 will rcccive exhibit No, 1946 for identification

4 |only., The mzrked excerpt therefrom will reccive

s (exhibit No. 1946-4.

6 | ("lhercupon, prosecution's document

7 No. 8082 was marked prosecution's exhibit

8 No. 1946 for identification; and the axcerpt

9 therefrom was marked prosecution's exhibit

10 No. 1946~A and received in cvidence,)

11 COM'ANDER COLE: This affidavit describes the

12 |{maltreatment of prisoners of war at Umeda Bunsho Camp,

13 | Osaka.

14 Leponent states, on page 1:
15 "At these work stations we wsre beaten,

16 | kicked, and generally mistreated by the civilian and

17 | army men that were in charg=. This troatment and the
18 | lack of any medical supplies started the dzaths of

19 | these men. Approximately four months after our arrival
20| in Osaka, about 25 per cent of our men had died., This,
2l | in my opinion, was caused from starvation, cxposure

22| and diseascs resulting from malnutrition and tha brutal

becatings that we suffered,"
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Prosecution document No, 8065, the affidavit
of Corporal Charles E. Maurer, sworn to 6 Octoder
1945, is offered for identification and the marked
excerpts therefrom are offered in evidence.

THE PRE:IDENT: Admitted on the usual terms.

CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution document
No, 8065 will receive exhibit No., 1947 for identifi-
cation only and the marked excerpt therefrom will
receive exhibit No. 1947-A,

(Whereupon, the document above
referred to was marked prosecution's ex-
hibit No., 1947 for identificatlon; the
marked excerpts therefrom belng marked
prosecution!s exhibit No. 1947-A and
received in eviderce.)

COMI'TANDER COLE: This affidavit confirms the
inhuman conditions at Umeda Bunsho Camp, Osaka.
Deponent states (page 1):-

"At Osaka there were originally 458 men;g
1289 died in the first four months from poor food and
exposure. Our food was 570 grams of rice per man per
day, which was inadeguate for men working., If you
did not work, this ration was reduced and in the
hospital toward the end,.pati@nts were given only

300 grams of food per day. The Japanese gave us very
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Prosecution document No, 8104, the affidavit
of Alexander Meredith, sworn to 5 September 1946,
is offered for identification and the marked excerpts
therefrom are offered in evidence,

THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms.

CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution documcnt
No, 81@4 will recelve exhibit No. 1948 for identifi=-
cation emly. The marked excerpts therefrom will
receive exhiblt No. 1948-A,

(Whereupon, the document above
referred to was marked prosecution's ex-
hibit No. 1948 for identificationy; the
marke@ excerpts therefrom belng marked
prosecution's exhibit No. 1948-A and
received in evidence.)

COMMANDER COLE: This affidavit states that
at Camp D1, Yokohama, in January, 1943, more than fifty
per cent of the prisoners were ill with dysentery and
malaria. Deponent states (paragraph 3, page 1)&-

"We were employed in the Yokohama Mitsubishi
yards as maintenence fitters. We left for work at
6:30 a.m., and got back to camp about 5:00 p.m.
each day. &ick men were forced to work and in the

first three months forty-five men died from pneumonia
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and malnutrition. With adequate medical supolies,
proper food and clothing and medical treatment these
men would not have died,

"Food was at all times inadequate and in
the summer of 1943 the meager rations were reduced
by about one half, The result was that beriberi
became prevalent and practically everyone suffered
from malnutrition,"

Prosecution document No, 8203, affidavit of
Lance Sergeant Arnold F. Caddy, sworn to 25 Janusry
1946, is offered for identification and the marked
excerpts therefrom are offered in evidence.

THE FPRE-IDENT: Admitted on the usual terms.

CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution document
No. 8203 will receive exhiblt No, 1949 for identifi-
cation only. The marked excerpts therefrom will
receive exhiblt No. 1949-A,

(Whereupon, the document above
referred to was marked prosecutiorn's ex-
hiblt No. 1949 for ldentification; and
the marked excerpts therefrom being
marked prosecution's exhibit No. 1949-A
and received in evidence.)

COMMANDER COLE: This affidavit relates to
conditions at Sendeyu., The affidavit states that the
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Japanese medical officer persistently refused to allow
the Allied doctor to gilve any medlical attention to
sick men., This resulted in the death of at least one
prisoner.

Affiant states (page 3):-

"From the treatment meted out at 2ll the
camps, it was clear that the Japanese pollcy as carrled
out by wvarious Camp Commanders and thelr subordinates
was to keep POWs in a low state of health and morale
by keeping them short of food and by severe treatment
and humiliation.™

Prosecution document No. 8119, affilavit
of Major Francis J. Murray, sworn to 23 January 1946,
is offered for identification. Marked cxcerpts there-
from are offered in evidenee,

THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms.
CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution document

No. 8119 will receive exhibit No. 1950 for identifi-
cation oaly and the marked excerpts therefrom will have
exhlibit No. 1950-A,
(Whereupon, the document above
referred to was marked prosecution's ex-
hibit No. 1950 for identification; the
marked excerpts therefrom being marked

prosecution's exhibit No. 1950~A and
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received in evidence.)

COMMANDER COLE: This affidavit relates to
prisoner of war Branch Camp No. 1 at Hakodate. Affiant
was a medical officer and was placed in charge of the
camp hospital. In Decemker 1943, one of the prisoners
complained of a pain in his left knee. Deponent
diagnosed the 1llness as acute osteomyelitls which
required an immediate operation, =nd at once asked
the camp commandant for permission to take the patient
to a local factory hospital near the camp where full
operating facilitles were available, ©&uch permission
was refused. Deponent thereupon requeéted to have
the necessary surgical instruments brought into camp
so he could perform the operation himself, but this
was also refused. As a result, the patient died a
few days later., At this camp the Japanese medical
personnel compelled several prisoners to sign hundreds
of chits for medicines which had not been lssued, and
which the Japanese apparently sold or gave to theilr
friends.

Prosecution document No, 8116, the affidavit
pf Captain Allan Berkeley, sworn to 31 January 1946,
is offered for identification. The marked excerpts

therefrom are offered in evidence.

THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms.
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CLERK OF THE COURT: Proseéution document
No. 8116 will receive exhibit No. 1951 for identifi~
cation only. 'lhe marked excerpts therefrom will
receive exhibit No. 1951-A,

(Whereupon, the document above
referred to was marked prosecution's ex-
hibit No, 1951 for identificatlonj the
marked excerpts therefrom being marked
prosecution's exhibit No. 1951-A and
received in evidence.)

COIMANDER COLE: This affidavit relates to
conditions at Camp No. 4, Fukuoka. Affiant was the
medical officer at this camp and states that there
were plenty of medical supplies in the camp but the
prisoners were never allowed sufficent for their needs.
At least one death resulted,

Prosecution document No., 8161, affidavit of
John W. Viney, sworn to 25 January 1946, is offered
for identification and marked excerpts therefrom are
offered in evidence.,

THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms.

CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's document
No. 8161 will receilve exhibit No, 1952 for identifi-
cation only. The excerpt therefrom will recelve

exhibit No. 1952-A.




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17

18

19

20
21
22
23

24

25

14,258

(Whereupon, the document above
referred to was marked prosecution's ex-
hibit No. 1952 for identification; the
excerpts therefrom being marked prosecu-
tion's exhibit No. 1952-A and recelved
in evidence,)

COMMANDER COLE: This affidavit relates to the
prison camp at Kawasaki. Affiant states (pages 2
and 3):-

"Although there were ample American Red
Cross supplies in the store, the medical sergeant
OtAWA refused to supply any, although he was repeatedly
requested so to do by our doctor. This applied also
to surgical instruments, and the doctor was forced
to get (from) the blacksmith whatever instruments he
could,

"OCAWA consistently refused medical treatment
to sick men. About thirteen deaths occurred in three
yvears, partly through his neglect, and but for the
fact that the POWs were able to steal fruit and other
food, many would have died from beriberi."

Prosecution document No. 8107, the affidavit
of &taff tergeant Michael J. Robertson, sworn to 19
October 1945, is offered for identification, larked

excerpts therefrom are offered in evidence.
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THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms.

CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution document
No. 8107 will receive exhibit No., 1953 for identifi-
cation only. The marked excerpts therefrom will receive
exhibit No, 1953-A.

(Whereupon, the document akove
referred to was marked prosecution's ex-
hibit No. 1953 for ldentification; the
marked excerpts therefrom being marked
prosecution's exhiblt No., 1953-A and
received in evidence.)

COMMANDER COLE: This affidavit describes
the maltreatment of airmen and refusal of medical
aid, Affiant bailled out of a B-29 over metropolitan
Tokyo, and after belng beaten by a mob of Japanese
men and women, was taken to the Kempel Tal Headquarters
in Tokyo for interrogation where he was beaten with
a bamboo stick. At this time he was suffering from
a broken leg and severe shrapnel wounds 1n both legs,.
No medical attention was given to him.

Affiant saw another U.S. pllot who was brought
to the same cell iIn a seml-delirious condition and with
marks of torture on his hands. No medical attention
was given this pilot, and he died the same night.

Prosecution document No. 8163, the affidavit
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of Sgt. Harry &later, sworn to 12 October 1945, is
offered for identification and marked excerpts
therefrom are offered in evidence.
THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms.
CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution document
No. 8163 will receive exhibit No., 1954 for identifi-
catlon only and the marked excerpts therefrom will
receive exhibit No. 1954-A,
(Whereupon, the document above
referred to was marked prosecution’s ex-
hiblt No. 1954 for identifications the
marked excerpts therefron béing marked
prosecution's exhibit No. 1954-A and
received in.evidence.)
COMMANDER CCLE: This affidavit confirms the
refusal of medical aid to captured Allied airmen.
Prosecution document No. 8349, the affidavit
of Phllip E. Sanders, CBM, UsN, sworn to 12 April,
1946, is offered for identification. Marked excerpts
therefrom are offered in evidence,
THE PRESIDENT: Adritted on the usual terms,
CLERK CF THE COURT: Prosecution document
No. 8349 will receive exhibit No. 1955 for identifi-
cation-only and the marked excerpt therefrom will

recelve exhibit No. 1955-A,
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(Whereupon, the document above
referred to was marked prosecution's ex-
hibit No. 1955 for identificationj the
marked excerpts therefrom being marked
prosecution's exhibit No. 1955-A and
received in evidence.)
COIMANDER COLE: Deponent states that in
April and lay, 1945, there were persisteni rumors that
in event America won the war the prisoners would all
be killed. Deponent was told by a Japanese interpreter
that if there were naval landings on Japan the prisoners
would never see home. Prisoners were given rougher
treatment every time there was an American air raid.
If the Tribunal please, thils completes the
documentary evidence for the Japan phase of this case,
THE PRESIDENT: Mr, Justice Mansfield.
¥R. JUSTICE MANSFIELD: If the Tribunal please,
the section of this phase covering cffences at sea and
on certain Pacific islands will be presented by Captain
Robkinsor after the evidence to be introduced by Colonel
Woolworth relating to the individual responsi»ility
of the accused.
I now present to the Tribunal Colonel G,S,

Woolworthe.
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1 TEE PRESIDENT: Colonel Woolworth.

2 I'R.  WOOLYORTE: Mr. Prcsidont and Mombors of
3 | &hc Tribunal:

4 It is now proposed to show the individual

5> | responsibility of the defendants for the Class B 0f-

6 | fenses, ample evidence of the commi-sion of which has
7 | already been introdiced covering Japan Proper as well
as all territory oczupied by Japancse troops. It may
well be - as suggesced by Mr. Justice Mansfield in his

o opening statement - that the identical pattern followed

= by the Japanese Army a2nd Navy in every erea in the
2| trcatment of prisoners of war, civilian internces and
= native population, nccessitates the infcrence of guilt
& of those officlals of the Government of Japsn, such as
2 members of the Cabinet and some other high officials of
16’ the Govirmment, of officers of the Imperial GHO, and of
= those officers of the Army and Navy in command in the
18

various areas where these ofTenses took place. At the
i9 |
2: risk of redundency, and so that this Tribunal need not |
L recly upon implications or infererces, howecver convineing,
s this additionel evidence will be adduced.
L First, it is desired to invite the attention of
o the Tribunal as bricfly as possible to the offieial :
25 position occupied by certain of the defondants at the i

timc these Class B 0ffenses have been proven to have cen|

ros
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committed.
A - (In Tokvo)

TOJO ~ was Primc Minister and concurrently
Minister of War - 1941-1944; also Foreign Minister -

2 Sertember 1942 to 1 October 1942.

ARAKT - was Ministcr of War Deccmber 1931 to
July 1934,

HIRANUMA - was Prime Minister - January to
August 1939.

ETIROTA - was Forecign Ministcr - September 1933
to March 1936; was Prime Ministcr and for a time Foreign
Vinister concurrently - March 1926 to February 1937;
Foreign Minister - June 1937 to May 1938,

VATSUOKA - President of the South Manchurian
Railway - 1935-1939; Foreign Minister, July 1940 to
July 1941,

MIVAMT - was Minister of War - April 1931 to
Deccmber 1231; Commander in Chief of the Kwangtung Army
1034-1036.

KII"URA - was Vice-lMinister of War - 1041 to 194

HMUTO - was Chicf of the VMilitary Affairs Burcau
(Tar Ministrj) - October 1939 to April 1942,

SATO - was Chief of the Military Affairs Burcau
(Mar Ministry) - April 1942 to Dcccmber 1944,

_ KOIsO - WES P?ime Minister - July 1944 to

I

|
1
|
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!
April 1945.

UMEZU - was Chief of Staff of the Army -
July 1944 to theo cnd of the wers

SFIMADA - was Minister of the Navy ~ October
19041 ~ Fcbruary 1944; Chief of Naval General Staff -
Fcbruery 1944 - July 1944,

NAGANO - was Chief of Naval Gencral Staff -
1941 - February 1944

KA - was Chief of Military Affairs Burecau of
the Navy - 1940-1044,

TOCO - Foreign Minister - October 1941 -~ 2
Scptember 19423 again April 1945 to August 1945.

SFIGEMITSU - Forcign Minister - April 1043 -
April 1945.

KIDO - Lord Keeper of Privy Scal - 1940-1945.

B - (In Army Commands)

MATSUI -~ Commander in Chicf of Japancsc forces
in China - October 1937 to Fcbruary 1938. (Rapc of
anking, Dceccmber 1937).

DAHIHARA - Commander in Chicf of Eestcrn Army
in Jzpan - 1943-1944: Commandcr in Chicf of 7th Arca
Army in Singaporc - 1944 - April 1945,

HASHIMOTO, -~ Commander of Artillery Regiment
which shelled the "Ladybird" - 1937.

HATA - Commander in Chicf of Expeditionary
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Force in Ccntrzl China - July 1940 - 1944,

ITAGAKI - Commandcr in Chiczf Jepancse Army in
Xorca - July 1941 - March 1945; Commander in Chicf of
7th Avres Army In Singaporc - April 194% - August 1945.

KIMURA - Commander in Chief «<f Japencsc Army
in Burma - March 1944 to the cnd of the war.

MUTO - Commander »f the 2nd Guards Division in
Sumatra, 19423 Chicf of 14th Arca Army in thc Philip-
pines under General YAMASHITA in 1944,

SATQ - Assistant Chicf of Staff of China Ex-
pcditionery Forces - January 1945; thcen Commander of
the 37th Division in Indo-China and in Thailand to the

cnd of Ethe wa

e

g

BZU - Commander in Chief of the Kwantung
Army - 1939 - June 1944,

Sccond, the agrecments and assurances of the

(o)

Japancse Govcrmnmcnt to ablde by the Geneve Prisoncr of
Tar Convention re the treatment of prisoncrs of war,
and so far as applicable to ecivilian internces, mace
to thc United Statcs, thc Governments of Britian,
Cenada, Australia, New Zcaland and Netherlands, are
alrcady in cvidcnece. It is proposed to show, by

cvidenec from official Japancsc Govcrnment rcecerds,

jircetives issucd - in violation of such agrcements and

0,

assuranccs, and¢ those fmong the defcndants responsible
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therefors
‘Third, it will be shown by efficial Japancse
records of knowledge on the part of many of these de-
Tendants of the megicct, ill-trecatment and illcgal
punishment of prisoncrs of war and internccs.
Fourth, it will be shown by offieial records
of thc Swiss ch°t10ﬁ, the protceting Power, of the

of War Inform-
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ation Burcau, that protests in bchalf of the United
tates 2nd Britian over failure to permit visits to
inet inhuman trcatment
of prisoncrs of war, shewed notice to many of €these
decfendants whose duty it was to pcrmit such visits and
to put a stop to suck inhumanc trecatment.
ifth, statisties from offieial records of

Australia, Canada, thec United Kingdom, New Zealand,

and th

(6]

of war and thc number who died in captivity.

jnited States, will show thc number of prisoners
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VR, HOWARD: Mr, President.

THE PRESIDENT: Mr. Howard.

2
3 MR. HOWARD: I would like to ecall the

4| Iribunal's attention to page 2 wherein Colonel Wool-

s | worth says that "KIMURA was Vice-liinister of War"

6| from "1941 to 1944." This is a misstatement which

has been made on other occasions.

7
8 Exhibit 113, which concerns KIMURA, Heitaro,
9| on nage 5 gives the date "April 10, 1941" as the date

10 upon which KIMURA was appointed War Vice-Minister.

11 Page 8: "Relieved of present post at his own re-

12| quest®™; date: "March 11, 1943." The evidence will
13 shov that during that year that the prosecution have
14 attributed to him as being Vice War Minister, KIKURA
15 was on a2 technical job with the Ordnance: foir+all of
16 the things with which he was charged in that fatal
: year, he was in a position where he could not have

5 been guilty of them.

= THE PRESIDENT: If the prosecution contests
& what you are saying, you are quite out of order. You
= can give this in the course of giving the evidence

ji for the defense. You are justified so far as relying
Zé on exhibit No. 113, but you are going further now.

4 What is the attitude of the »nrosecution?

25

UR.CWOOLWORTH: If the Tribunal please, if
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there were an error in the statement made in the
opening statement, it was inadvertent. A further
check will be made, and we would like to advise the
Court of the result of our check.

THE PRESIDENT: It is about time these
periods of office were finally settled, Of course,
there may be some difficulty about settling them
finally.

MR. WOCLWORTH: If your Honor nlease, at
the londay session of court we will have our check
completed and will advise the Court of the proper
dates.

rHE PRESIDENT: As I am reminded, the Japan-
ese Government has furnished official records cover-
ing these matters,

MR. WOOLWORTH: As I understand it, the
prosecution is perfectly willing to stand by the
report made by the Japanese Government in exhibit
Mo, 113,

THE PRESIDENT: We will act on exhibit
No. 113 until the contrary is proved.

KR, HOWARD: I would like to point out that
this same error was made in the other opening state-
ment. I had not planned to mention the matter at

this timey but it is so repeated and su unjust --
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the accusations -- that I thought, possibly, we should
enter some of our defense at this time,

THE PRESIDENT: The objection to what you
said, Mr. Howard, was not to any evidence you quoted
but to evidence which.you purport to foreéast.

lR. HOWARD: Your Honor, I continue to
read from exhibit 113 which is the Javanese Govern-
ment document.

VR, JUSTICE MANSFIELD: If the Tribunal
please, I object to any further argument on it at
this stage. We have agreed to abide by what is set
out in exhibit 113. ' I submit That that is the end
of the matter,

THE PRESIDENT: ~ You have already given us
parts of 113 that we desire to know.

MR, HOWARD: Would the Court be interested
in my pointing out another error, that is, another
place where their date does not coincide with the
opening statement of Colonel Woolworth?

THE PRESIDENT: I think we gshould allow you

to point out where these opening statements are in-

"consistent with the evidence already given.

MR, HOWARD: Page 3 of the opening state-
ment: YKIMURA - Commander in Chief of Jananese Army

in Burma, March 1944 to the end of the war."
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CHISHOLM DIRECT

Page 8 of exhibit 113: "Assigned as the
Commarder-in-Chief of the Japanese Armed Forces in
the Burma Area, 1944, August 30."

That is all, Celonel.

THE PRESIDENT: Colonel Woolworth,

MR. WOOLWORTH: Prosecution desires to call
as its fTirst witness in this phase Captain James
Strickland Chisholm, Infantry, Australian Imperial
Forces.

JAHES STRICELANDE .CHISHDI LM
called as o witness on behalf of the prosecution,
being first duly sworn, testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR, WOOLWORTH:
¢ Please state your name, rank, organization

and station,

4 Captain James Strickland Chisholm, forty

years old, A.I,F,

G Were you ever a prisoner of war of the

Japanese?

A I was.
Q Where were you confined and for what period?
A I was in Singapore from the 15th of February,

1942 until the end of lNovember, 1942 and then in Japan
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until the finish of the war.

G Where were you confined in Japan?

A Ffom the 10th of December, 1942 until about
the 20th of August, 1944 in Naoetsu Camp.

Q How many Australian pirisoners of war were
confined in this camp with you?

A Three hundred at the start.

Q@ With what food were you provided?

4  Imsufficlent,

G Please describe the quantity of food which
was given you customarily.

A "It varied a great deal from a very small
guantity to a not so small quantity at different
times during mv confirement, The ration consisted
of an average of about fifteen per cent of rice and
some sixty per cent of barley and the remainder of
corn or millet. We were also --

THE PRESIDEFT: Your evidence will be use~
less unless you give the weight. Say the number of
ounces,

A (Continuing) It varied a great deal in
weight, but mairly about five hundred grams.for
light workers and men who were on longer shifts got
slightly more.

Q Upon what work were the prisoners of war
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| employed at that camp?

A  About half of them were in a steel mill,
and the other half were in a chemical factory irn which
they were making carbon for electric arcs, for
furnaces. During the summer, there were also
parties unloading ships into barges at sea and
another party loading coal onto railway trucks.

Q What was the product of the steel mill?

A They were rolling steel plate and making
ingots of steel.

Q How many deaths occurred anong the prison-
ers of war during the time you were confined at
Haoetsu?

A Sixty.

Q What was the principal cause of the deaths
arong the prisoners of war?

A Lack of food and i1l treatment, long hours
of work.

¢ What do you mean by "ill treatment"?

A Continued bashing by guards and camp staff.
Q Were vou furnished with ample clothing?
A o

G Do you recall a visit from any general
officers while you were confined in this camp?

A Several,
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Q@ Will yeu name any one visit or any general
officer whese name you know? |

A DOHIHARA, Kenji was one.,

Q When did that wisit occur?

A I can't give you the exact date. I have it
in ny diary which is an exhibit in another court.
But it was somewhere in September or October, 1943.

Q Did you know the official position of
General DOHIHARA at the time he visited your camp?

A I did not know,

Q Did you observe General DOHIEARA talk to
any of the prisoners of war?

A I cannot recell him talking to any prison-
Q What were the conditions in camp at the

A Very bad,

¢ At that time, when General DOHIHARA visited
the camp, what was the physical condition of your-
self and the other prisoners of wq??
I was sbout forty pounds lighter than I am
now; the men were in a pitiable condition.

Q What, generally, were the sanitary condi-
tions in vour camp?

& We, at periods, did not have a bath for
7 ?
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two months, the place was smothered in lice,
other vermin, and the latrines were crawling

maggots.

iz, LEVIN: I would like to inquire
or not the wilness is referring to any notes

memoranda in =2onrection with his testimonyv,

bugs,

with

whether

or

THE VITHESS: Here in the box I have no

notes,
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@ Were men dying\cf malnutrition at the time
of General DOHIHaki's visit?

& Yes.

Q You stated, I believe, that clothing supplied
was insufficient. Will you describe what clothing was
supplied to you, if eny, and other prisoners?

A I don't remember the exact quantities of
clothing. All men had a2 British service dress uniform
which they wore through the entire period. 4And they
were also issued with overccats which were not allowed
to be worn in the camp, only at work., With five feet
of snow on the ground it was véry cold, They were
walking on their bare feet at times. Although there
were three to four hundred pairs of Red Cross boots
in the camp, we could not get them issued.

Q Was there any change for the better in con-
ditions at your camp after DOHIHARA's visit?

A None whatever,

THE PRESIDEKT: What sort of inspection did
DOLEIHshs make?

THE WITKESS: Just a routine inspecticn of the
camp quarters, and the sick men and the officers who
were in campe.

Q Does the witness know the names of any other

senior officers who visited the cemp?
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- A Prince TOKUGAWA visited the camp. I don't
know whether he was an officer or not:. I do not recall
any other-general officers' names.

Q Was Prince TOKUGAWA a Red Cross representative
of Japan, do you know?
A I believe he was, I did not know at the time
what he was,
THE PEESIDENT: M. Blewett.
MR. BLEWETT: If the Court please,
CROSS -EXAIINATION
BY li., BLEWETT:
Q I did not cateh your rank, sir, What is it,
please?
A Captain.
Is that AIF Australian Infantry?
Imperial,

What branch of the service were you in, sir?

= LD P LD

Infantry.
Q What was the name of this camp in Japan? I
did not catch that when you were testifying.
A  DNaoetsu, 4B, Tokyo.
Was that in Tokyo?
No,

Where is it located, Captain?

- ST oo SRR S 1o

In Nigata Prefecture, on the Sea of Japan,
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Q You reached there in November or December
1942, is that correct?
A That is correct.
Q Now, on what date was this visit made by
General DOHIHARA?
THE PRESIDENT: September '43, was it not?
k. BLEWETT: He said September or October,

sir.
THE PRESIDENT: Well, that is all he knows.
M. BLEWETT: I mean the actual day, if he
knows.

A I cannot recall the exact day from memory.
But if the Court wants it, I have it in my diary.

Q@ Well, do you remember, Captain, whether or
not there was several feet of snow on the ground?

A There were definitely not.

Q Well, I understood you to testify that at the
time that the general was there that there was snow
on the ground, and that there were boots available
which were not issued to you. Now, possibly Colonel
Woolworth meant at a later period of time.

A That testimony with regard to the boots and
the snow was not in ¢onner vlon with DOHIHAKA, -

Q Thank you for clearing that up, sir. Was any

preparation made prior to the visit of General DOLIHARA .
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CHISHOLM . Bbss

with respeet to the condition of the camp?

A On all such visits the cemp was cleaned very
thoroughlyfabout ten or fifteen times.

Q How long would you say that the general stayed
at the camp during that visit, Captain?

A I have no recollection.
Q Did you see him personally?

A I did,

ThE PRESILENT: Would you recognize him

again?

ThHE WiITHBESS: I would,

o)

THE PRESILENT: Can you see him now?
THE WITNESS: That is him there., (Pointing
to the accused DUiIHALA.)

Q I think you testified on direct examination,
Captain, that he simply made a cursory examination of
the camp, wasn't that true?

A We were lined up in our room during that in-
spection, and I don't know for how long he was actually
in the camp, or whet he inspected other than the offi-
cers and the sick.

lia BLEWETT: That is all, Captain, thank you.
THE PRESIUENT: Counselor SEIMaNOUCHI,
ChOSS -ELAMINATION (Continued)

BY Mh. SHIMaNOUCHI:
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Q Witness, have you ever seen Japanese soldiers
beat or kick other Japanese soldiers at the camp in
Nacetsu?

A I never actually saw that myself.

Q@ Have you ever heard of such cases?

£ Frequently.

Q _About how many times?
& I have nc idea.
Q How was it at the camp in Singapore?

:I.\

By comparison, very good.

Q Was there any cases of Japanese soldiers
béating other Japanese soldiers in Singapore?

A I édid not see any.

@ You testified, Mr. Witness, that before Gen-
eral DOLEIHakL visited the Naoetsu Camp, the camp was
cleaned. Were the wards where the sick prisoners of
war were quartered, were they also cleaned?® Were the
quarters of the sick also cleaned?

iy I presume so,

Q You testified that the Naoetsu Camp was filled
with lice and other bpgs. Were there any such insects
and vernin where Japanese soldiers were quartered?'

i Not to my knowledge.

Q How do you know that there were not any in

thg Japanese quarters?




CHISHOLM CHOSS

A Because the interpreters were always telling
us they were frightened of getting them.
Q Do you recall the name of this interpreter?
4  KaNO,
(( What is KANO's first name?%
i I cannot say.
I, SHIMANCUCHI: That is all, sir.
THE PRESIDENT: Mr, Levin,
ihe LEVIN: I have just one question, lr.
P‘resident.a
ChOSS-EXMINATION (Continued)
BY lit.. LEVIN:
Q In how many atrocity cases have you testified,
Captain?
A Twoe
k. LEVIN: That is all., There will be no
further examination of this witness.
ibvo WOOLWOKRTH: No further questions for the
prosecution of this witness,
THE PLESIDENT: The witness is released on the
usual terms.
(Whereupon the witness was excused.)
lfre WOOLWOLTH: The next vitness for the prose-
cution will be former General TaiuKe Ryukichi. He was

formerly sworn before this Court.
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ThE PhESIDENT: We will reeess for fifteen

minutes.
(Whereupon, at 1450, a recess was l
tzken until 1505, after which the proceedings

were resumed as follows:)
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MARSHAL OF THE COURT: Tre Internestional
Military Tribunal for the Far East is now resumed.

THE PRESIDENT: IMr. llclanus.

MR. McMANUS: Mr. President and Members of

the Tribunal: I would like to object to tke recal-

ling of this witness at this time. In fact, I would

like to object to any furtrer testimony at all from
this witness.

The witness TANAKA hss been utilized by
the prosecution for four full days, at least his
testimony has been, on July 5, July 6, July 8 and
July 9. His testimony concerned events covering a
period of time from 1914 to 1945. No provision
had been made for tre recalling of this witness by
the prosecution and no reguest had been msde at
the time of his dismissal from the witness' stand
to the Court by the rrocecution for such recall.
In so far as the witness has had ample opportunity
to testify to any facts whick he might have known
about, I think it is highly improper to recall him
and to accept any additional testimony from him,

They are the grounds for my objection, if
your Honor please.

TEE PRESIDENT: Tre prosecution should

—__give us some reason for recalling him, certainly,
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MR. JUSTICE MANSFIELD: The reason for the
recall of this witness, if the Tribunal please, 1s
that on the original calling of the witness his
evidence was not directed to this phase of the case,
and no evidence was given by him relative to this
particular prase.

I submit, if the Tribunal pleecse, that
there is no reason why a witness can not be recalled
in order to testify upon a matter which has not been

previously dealt with in his examination in chief.

Trere is no assumption here that the evidence whick |
Fe has given has exhausted 211 his knowledge, becsuse f
the case for the prosecution was given by phases,
and the defense rave not so far had a right to
cross-examine him on this phase, which they will now
rave.

MR. McMANUS: If your Honor pleases, 1n
so far as no provision had been made for his Te-
call, T submit tret the Tribunal should take into
consideretion the only grounds for recalling this
man should be upon newly discovered evidence, and
not for tre prrpose of testifving to fects which
were slready within tre witness! knowledge at the ?

time wren he was in this court room and on the wit-

ress' stand for a period of four full days.
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THE PRESIDENT: Mr. Logan.

MR. LOGAN: If tke Tribunal please, in ad-
dition to the objection mede by Mr. McManus, I
would like to maske this observation: trat on the
prosecution's case they shouldn't be permitted to
take the position that they can put witnesses on
tre stznd and leter recsll trose whom they think
arc more favorable to threir cese to testify to
certain facts. In other words, this is not a court
of experimentstion, wrere the prosecution is permit-
ted to test certain witnesses anéd recall those whom
they think can starnd up best under cross-examination.
And furtrermore, with all due respect to my learned
friend Mr. Justice Mansfield, there is & presumption
that once the witness is put on the stand trat his
testimony has been exhausted, and they made no reser-
vation kere.

THE PRESIDENT: Tre prosecution did tell us
trat other witnesses would testify in more phsases
tran one, but they did not mention TANAKA, if my
recollection serves me right. Tre fact remains
that properly be could testify in only one phase.

If bhe has evidence bearing on other phases we, in
the exercise of our diseretion, think we should hear

bim; Ye will hear him.
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D L

RYUEKICEI WA EER pecslled as a wisness

on behalf of the prosecution, resumed the stand

and testified further throusgh Japsnese interpreter
TFE PRESIDENT: You are still on vour former
DIRECT EXAMINATION (Continued)

37 ¥MR. ""OOL7ORTH:

Q- General, what was rour last service in the

H
e
(4]
=

Tinlstry?
A Chief of the Military Service Bureau.
Q  Your name is TANAKA, Ryukichi?

Yes.,

o=

Q Are vou familisr with the organization and
responsibilities of the various bureaus of the War
Ministry as they existed between 1940 and 19457

A Yes, I know,

Q mat is fhe most important bureau of the
War Ministry, and why?

MR. LOGAN: Object to the form of that
cuestion, your Honor,
THE PRESIDENT: The objection is overruled.

A  The most important bureau in the War Officg
is the Iilitary AfTairs Bureau. The reasons for my

so stating is thet the Military Af airs Bureau is in

n
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TANAKA DIRECT

charge of the army's budgdt, the organization, equip-
ment and installation of the military forces, the
making of domestic and external plans, the conducting
of propaganda, the conducting of investigation, all
of which constitute important functions.

8] Does that bureau have anything to do with
metters concerning international regzulations affecting
the army?

4 With respect to that the business was handled
in the military affairs section of the Military Affairs
Bureau.

Q@ Who handled the location 2né construction

of prisoner of war camps®

.4 The responsibility presides with the I"inister
of "Tar but as to the location and construction of
such camps, the business was handled by the military
section of the "ilitary Affairs Bureau.

MR. LOGAN: ' If your Honer please, I move to
strike out the first portion of that answer as to
where responsibility lies; that is for the determina-
tion of the Court,

THE PRESIDEINT: It is sufficiently a question
of fact for the witness to answer.

0  General, in the matter of protests regarding

L

the treatment of prisoners of war and requests regarding
l
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prisoners of war sent to the Foreign O0ffice, were
those sent to the War Ministry?

A  Documents and other papers relating to
prisoners of war were sent by the Ministry of Foreign

ffairs to the War Office, the Home Office and the
Navy Ministry.

Q What was the course of these after reaching
the ar Ministry?

A Such diplomatic documents were first sent
to the adjutant's office in the Var linistry and
from there to the military affairs section. Those
relating to prisoners of war were sent by the same
seetion to the Prisoners of War Information Bureau.

Q And if it was felt that a reply should be
mede to the protest, who prepared the reply?

A Replies to be made to the authorities
outside of the War Office were prepared in the mil-
itary affairs section of the Military Affairs Bureau.

Q After the proposed replies were prepared
where did they go next?

A To the Foreign Office by way of the adjutant's
office -- War 07fice.

0 Did thev go to the viee minister or the
minister? |

A These went to the Foreign Office after being
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given the approval of the minister and the vice
ninister.

Q During the tine that you were chief of the
Military Service Bureau, were meetings of the bureau
chiefs of the War lMinistry held, and, if so, how often?

A Yes, they were. These conferences were held
twice a week,

0 Do you recall any such meeting at which the

question of trestment of prisoners of war arose?

A Yes,; I do.

Eij

When was that?

A If my memory serves me right, immediately
after the fighting at Bataanj; the end of April, 1942,

0 What hapnened at that meeting?

A At this conference the cquestion as to how
to treat the many prisoners of war captured in the
various combat zones in the southern areas was deter-
mined.

0 Was General UEMURA, the chlef of the Prisoner |
of War Informetion Bureau, present at that meeting?

THE PRESIDENT: It is grossly objeetionable.

IMr. Logan, you need not take the peint.
Ask him who were present.

MR, "TOOLWORTE: I withdraw the cuestion.

0  Who were present at that meeting which you
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described?

A Those present at this conference were T0JO,

War Minister; KIMURA, Vice Ministerj; TOMINAGA, Chiefl

of the Personnel Bureau; SATO, Chief of the Military
Affairs Bureau; myself and KAN, Chief of the Ordnance
Bureau; and YOSFIZUKI, Chief of the Procurement and
Mobiliration Bureau; KURIHASHI, Chief of the Security
Bureau; MIKI, Chief of the Surgeon General's Bureau;
OYAMA, Chief of the Legal Affairs Bureau; NAKAJIMA,
Chief of the ~~- NAKANURA, commander of the gendarmerie;
HONDA, Chief of the Armored Forces Bureauj; MATSUMURA,
Chief of the Army Press Section; other than these,
the private secretaries of the War lMinister and the

Yice War Minister. That is 8311,
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0 "as there a discussion at that time in
connection with how prisoners of war should be
treated®

A At the request of EWMURA, Chief of the Priso-
ner of War Information Bureau, TOJO, ™ar Minister,
gave his declsion.

r What was his decision”

A In the light of the prevalling situation
in Japan at that time, which was to enhance the labor
efficiency of the country, and in the light of the
slogan then current, "No work, no food," the first
point that was decided at thils meeting was to make
all prisoners of war engage in forced labor.

With regard to this decision, UYENUIA,
Chief of the Military Affairs--Prisoner of War In-
formation Bureau, said that making prisoners of war
of the rank of warrant officers and abowve would be
in violation of the Gensva Convention. But in spite
of the view thus expressed by UVEMUIA, War [inister
TOJO gave the decision of utilizing these officers
for labor purposes in the light of the faet that
Japan had not ratified the Geneva Convention, although
it was the governrment's position to respect the spirit
of that eonvention.

It was decided that prisoner of war camps be

o)
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agtablished not only in the southern areas but also
in Japan proper, in Formosa, Korea, China, and
Manchuria, and to send prisoners of war to these
areas as a means of enhancing the trust and confi-
dence of the peoples of Asia 1n Japan.

~  Are you familiar, General =--

MR. BLEWETT: May I interrupt to request
the witness to shorten his answers? It is almost im-
possible to take them down. What I mean, of course,
is to pause and give us an opportunity td get the
answer correctly.

THE PRECIDENT: His answers are respon-
sive, as AMmerican counsel say. He isn't discursive,
but perhaps he is speaking rather rapidly. I don't
know., Of course he pauses for translation, Mr.
Blewett.

MR, BLEWETT: The sentences are quite
lengthy. The time between the pauses--if he could
shorten that up 2 bit it would help tremendously.

THE PRE:fIDENT: Witness, speak in

shorter sentences if you can and pause more often for

translation.

MR, T. OKAMOTO: Although, Mr. President,
yvou have kindly pointed the matter out already, in
view of the fact that this witness' testimony is high-
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ly important. we would like to have him speak in
short sentences, and we should 2lso like to add a
request to the interpreters to be careful in their
interpretation. | |
BY MR. WOOLWORTH (Continued):

#  General, are you familiar with the ordinance

establishing the Imperial G.H.0.?

A Yes.
0 Do you know, in general terms, what it pro-
vided?
MR, LOGAN: If the Tribunal please, I believe
that ordinance is in evidence and that 1t speaks for

itself.
MR. WOCLWORTH: It is exhibit 80.
THE PRESIDENT: You are not trying to test
his memory, Colonel, are you?
IR, WOOLWORTH: I will withdraw the question.
BY IMR. WOOLWORTH:
¢ Of whom was the Imperial General Headquarters
constituted®
A The Imperinl General Headquarters was
separated into two parts, the Army and the Navy.
The Army division included the Chief of the Army
General &taff and the Navy.
THE MONITOR: Correction. The Imperial
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General General Headquarters consisted of the Army
and the Navy, the Army by the Army General staff--
The Imperial General Headgquarters was divided into
the Army and Navy departments, and the Army of it-
self constituted the Army General &taff. The Navy
Department was constituted by the Naval General
Staff. In addition to this, the War Minister and
the Navy Minister participated in the Imperial
Headguarters as regular members. Then the Vice-
minister of War, the Chief of the Military Affairs
Bureau, and other bureau chiefs, when necessary,
attended as members of the staff of the War Minister,
The most important positions in the Imperial
General Headquarters were occupied by the Chief of
the Army General Staff and the Chief of the Navy
General 8taff. Other .important members, in their
order, were the Vice-chlef of ftaff, the War Minister,
and the Chief of the First Division General £taff.
By Chief of the First Division I mean the Operations
chief.

M Did T understand you to say that the Imper-
1al General Headquarters consisted of the army side
of the Imperial General Headquarters and the navy side?

A Yes, from the Army and the Navy.

@ The decisions in which both the Army and

e o 8 L7 G
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the Navy were interested were made hy the Joint ac-
tisn of their chiefs of staff and ministers of war
and navy, as the case might be?

MR, LOGAN: T object to that as leading,
your Honor, apd I ask that counsel be given a direc-
tion by the Tribunal te refrain from asking leading
questions of a witness of this character.

THE PRESIDENT: T understood him to be cop-
firming an answer, really, if I d3d not mistake what
he said, and rot to be suggesting one. But yau must
avoid leading this witness, because, as Mr, Legan
contends, his evidence 1s of wvital importance.

MR, WOOLWORTH: That is all.

MR, LEVIN: Mr., President.

THE PRESIDENT: Mr., Levin,

MR. LEVIN: May we request that this witness

stand down until Monday morning for cross-examination?.

THE PRESIDENT: Yes, we agree that he should, -

Mr. Lewin.
The witness will attend again at half past
nine on Monday morning. He is at liberty teo go now.
Well, I suppose it is not desirablé to go
on this afternoon for the next fifteen minutes. Have
you any evidence you could give now?

MR, WOOLWORTH: Yes, sir.
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If the Court please, I desire to introduce
in evidence »rosecution document Fo, 847F.

THE PRESIDENT: 'hat is thet document,
Colonel? .

IR, WOOLWORTH: It is a letter signed by the
Gaimusho, Tokyo, 29 January 1942,

THE PRESIDEIT: It states the attitude of
the Jopanese Governnent toward the prisoners of war?®

IR. VOOL¥ORTH: Yes.

THE PRESIDENT: Admitted, on the usual ternms,

CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution docunient
No., 847F will receive exhibit No., 1956.

(Thereupon, the document above re-
ferred to was narked prosecution's exhibit
No. 1956 and received in evidence,)

¥R, VOOLVORTH: (Reading) "Gaimusho, Tokyo,
29th Janvary, 1942,

"1i. le Charge d4!'/ffaires,

"Following my letter dated 19th of this
month, I have the honour to make known to you the
attitude of the Imperial Government on the treatment of
prisoners of war:

"l; The Imperial Government has not yvet
ratified the Convention relative to the treatment of

prisoners of war of 27th July, 1929, It is, therefore,




10

i1

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

14,296

—not—bourd by the said Convention, However, it will

apply mutatis mutandis the provisions of the said
Convention to English, Canadian, lustralian and New
Zealand prisoners of war in its hands.

"2. 4s to the provisions of food and
clothing for prisoners of war, it will consider, on
condition of reciprocity, the national and racial
custons of the prisoners.

"I would te obliged if you would bring the
abovementioned to the knowledge of the Government of
Great Britain, Canada, Australia and New Zealand.

"Signed by the Minister."

The statement of source -- does the Tribunal
care to have the statement of source read into the
record?

THE PRESIDENI: Yes, it appears to have Dbeen
Foreign llinister TOGO,

IR. WOOLWORTH: (Recading) "Statement of
Source and futenticity.

"I, HAY/SHI, Kaoru" --

THE PRESIDENT: Well, do not read all that.

HR. VOOLYORYH: "Shakt is that?

TH PRESIDENT: The Hinister is supposed to
have signed it as Foreign lMinister TOGO, the accused

TOGO?
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MR 2 OO ORER e e S
I desire to introduce in cvidence document
1485B, which is a statement concerning the renly of
9 > 2

the Joponese Toreign linister to the Argentine Charge

il TPaares 4%

¥

Tckyo on Janunry 29, 1942,
THEE PRESTIDEFET: Ldmitted on the usual terms.
CLERI” OF TLiz CURT: Prosecutlon document
ifo. 1465F will receive exhibit No. 1957.
("Mhereunon, the document above re-

ferred to wes marked prosecution's exhibit

L

No, 1957 znd received in evidence.)
IR, WMLU(RTH (Headdnp )

"On Januaory 3, 1942 the British Government
corruniccted through the iArgentine Charge d'.ffaires
in Tokyo the information that the Eritish, Canadian,
fustralian and New Zealané Governnents would declare
their observence of the Geneve Prisoner of ¥Wer Con-
vention of 1929 in respect of Japcn 2nd inquired
whether the Impericl Governnment had any intention of
naking a similap declaration.

"There was another corrmunication on January
5th saying that they propose to take the national and
racial rannsrs and customs of the prisoners of war
into consideration when 2pplying articles 11 and 12

of the said agrecment concerning the supply of




10

11

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

14,298

provisions and clothing to the prisoners of war.

"To the above we communicated the follow-
ing to the various Governments mentioned above,
through the irgentine Charge d!'/ffaires in Tokyo on
January 29ths

"l. The Imperial Government has not
ratified the agreement in question and therefore
refuses to be bound in any way whatever by the
agreement, but will apply the provisions of the
salid agreement to British, Canadian, lustralian
and New Zealcnd prisoners of war within Japan's
jurisdiction.

"2. The Imperial Government will consider
the national and racial manners and customs of the
prisoners of war on 2 basis of reciprocity when
supplying clothing and »nrovisions to the prisoners
of war."

THE PRESIDENT: %ell, that document comes
from the Japanese Foreign [ffairs linistry, as shown
by the certificate.

IR. WOOL'ORTH: I desire to introduce
document 14654, which is a rcecord of conference in
War Linistry regarding decision not to apnly the

Geneva Convention and orders issued in consequence

thereof.
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THE PRESIDENT : ZA@mitted on the usual terms.
CLLRK OF THE COURT: Proseccution's document
No. 14654 will receive exhibit Nos 1958,
(“"hereupon, the doetument above re-
ferred to was marked prosecution's exhibit
No. 1958 and received in evidence.)
MR, YOOLVORTH: (Reading)
"INPERILL JAPANKSL GOVERNEENT, Central
Liaison Office.

lr, 4. F, Mignone, Document fAequisi-

o0

"TO
£ion, IPS.

"From: lir. Ohta, Central Liaison Office.

"Subjeet: Production of Document Requested.

"18 Arril 1946.

"Tith refercnce to your check sheet dated
30 Merch, I wish to submit herewith the required docu-
ment compiled by the First Demobilization HMinistry.

“/s8/ S. Ohta,

WSUBJECT ¢ Recor 3 of Conference in War
Uinistry, lMay 6, 1942, regarding decision not to
annly the Geneva Convention, and orders issued in
consequence thercof,

"There is no data to confirm whether or not
there was held any conference in the Tor liinistry on

May 6, 1942, However, as regards the matter of
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non-annlication of the Geneva Convention the
following decisions of the Wer kinistry mey be
cited:

"l. The Vice liinister of Foreign /ffeirs
under dete of January 13, oncé 16, transmitted to the
*lar liinistry the inguiries of imerican, British and
other gzovermments. The Ministry, following several
conferencés, reached a decision (innex I) and commu-
nicateld the same to the Vice liinister for Foreign
Lffairs on Jenmary 23. However, there are no records
of the conferences.

"2. On January 27, 1943, the Vice iinister
for Foreign iffceirs sent an inquiry regarding the
application of’ the Prisoner of "ar Convention to
non-combattant internces. a&s a result of a confer-
ence, the Ministry reached a deeision (/Lnnex II),
The scme was communicated by the Viee Minister of Var
to the Vice lMinister of Foreign Affairs under date
of February 6, however, there is no record of the
conference,

"3, The Forelgn Office, under date of
December 12, 1941, transmitted to the Var linistry
the communication of the Internotional Red Cross
Committec Chairmen, liax Hudar, concerning collection

and transmission of information regarding prisoners
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of war. .ifter a conference, the iiinistry rcached a
decision (/nnex III), which was communicated to the
Foreign Office.

"4, The above decisions being entirely in

line with the fundamental principles and policey,
according to whieh the "ar ilinistry had always
directed the conduct of the affairs relating to
prisoners of war, no ordcrs seem to have been issued
in consequence of the decisions. (Existing data
been exermined, but it cannot be ascertcined whether
any order wcs issued or not.)

"Inncx I,

"Renly from Wiece Kinister of Ver to Viece
Ilinister for Foreign .iffairs, January 23, 1942.
(Translation) .

'In enswer to your inquiries in cleaor
No., 52 and No. 53, dated January 13 cnd No. 85, dated
Januery 16, the views of this Ilinistry are as follows:

“tT, Concerning No, 52:

"1, In view of the faet that the Geneva
Coavention relating to nrisoners of war was not
rgtified by His lia jesty, we can hardly announce our
observance of the same. But it would be safe to

notify the world thet we have no objection to acting

in accordance with the Convention in the treatment
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"12, As regards providing prisoners of war
with food and clothing, we have no objecction to
giving due consideration to the national or racial
habits and customs of the prisoners.

¥ITI. Concerning No. 53 and No., 85, the
above views will be applicable.!

Hinnex 11.

"Application of the Prisoner of Var Con-
vention to Non-Combattant Internees. (irmy,
Ordinary No. 753, February 6, 1942) (Translation)

"Referring to your communication, No. 149,
dated January 27, 1942, on the above subject, the
views of this ministry are as follows:

"The 1929 Geneva Convention relating to
Prisoners of Uar has no binding power whatsoever on
Japan, bBut this ministry has no objection to apply-
ing the prineiples of the Convention to, non-combattant
internees within such limits as it is applieable,
provided, however, that no person be subjected to
labor against his will,

“irmex ¥il,

"Communicotion of the International Red
Cross Comnmittec Chairman concerning collection and

transmission of informction regarding prisoners of war
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(Translation)

"Referring to your comrmnication, No. 4585,
dated December 12, 1941, on the above subjeect, the
views of this llinistry are as follows:

"The Ministry agrees to the proposzal.

"However,

"a. It is not that we 'declare that we
are prepared to apply in practice! the provisions
of the Prisoncer of Var Convention of 1929, but that
we "utilize then for the convenience of transmission
of information,!

"b. .Infofnmation is to be transmitted by
telegran and other means. M

"CERTIFICATE" w—-

THE PRESIDENT: You need not read that.

¥We will adjourn until half-past nine on
ilonday morning.

(*"hercupon, at 1600, an adjourn-

ment was taken until llonday, 6 January 1947,

at 0930.)

- me we we




